SR BarLisor & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUMNTOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Aditya Birla Capital Limited
thereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and consolidated Cash Flow Statement
lor the vear then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consclidated cash Tows of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, The respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities: the selection and application o appropriste accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and
maimntenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensunmg the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due 1o fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Dircctors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit, While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified
under Section 143010} of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures 1o obiain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated linancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including  the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the conselidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order 1o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of Dircctors,
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as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial stalements. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of
their reports referred to in paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India ol the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at March 31, 2017, their consolidated profit, and their consolidated cash flows for the year
ended on that date,

Emphasis of Matter

The auditors of Aditya Birla Money Limited ("ABML”), without qualifving their opinion on the
consolidated financial statements of ABML have drawn attention to Note no. 34 (iii) of the Notes to
the Financial Statements relating to the recoverability of assels in the nature of trade receivables,
advances, and other assets etc. aggregating to Rs. 18.73 Crore grouped under advances recoverable in
cash or kind, which is subject to matter of claim and more fully deseribed therein,

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements above, is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Heport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries as
noted in the “other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

{a) We / the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which 1o the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
ol those books and reports of the other auditors;

(¢} The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group’s companies incorporated in

(e
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(f)

(el

[ndia is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 {27 of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure 1™ to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given 1o us:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 34(1) 1o the consolidated financial
statements;

ii.  Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts — Refer Note 34(ii) to the consolidated lnancial
statements;

i, There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in
India during the vear ended March 31, 2017; and

iv. The Holding Company and subsidiaries incorporated in India have provided disclosures in
MNote 33 in the consolidated financial statements as to the holding of Specified Bank MNotes
on November 8, 2016 and December 30, 2016 as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes
during the period from November 9, 20016 to December 30, 2016. Based on our auodit
procedures and relying on the management representation regarding to the holding and
nature of cash transactions, including those in Specified Bank Motes, we report that these
disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Holding
Company and as produced to us by the management,

(ther Matter

(a)

b

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of seven
subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs, 41,733 Crore, and total
revenues of Rs. 2185 Crore and net cash inflows of Rs, 66 Crore for the year ended on that date,
These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors,
which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished
lo us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

The auditors of Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited (*BSLI), a subsidiary company, have
reported that the actuarial valuation of liabilities of BSLI for life policies in force and for policies
in respect premium has been discontinued butl liability exists as at March 31, 2017 is the
responsibility of BELI"s Appointed Actuary (*the appointed actuary™). The actuarial valuation of
these liabilities for life policies in force and for policies in respect of which premium has been
discontinued but liability exists as at March 31, 2017 has been duly certified by the appointed
actuary and in appointed actuary’'s opinien, the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance
with the guidelines and norms issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority
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("IRDA") and the Institute of Actuaries of Indig in concurrence with IRDA, BSL1's auditors have
relied on the appointed actuary’s certificate in this regard for forming their opinion on linancial
statements of BSLIL

Cur opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements above, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

For .. Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E3000035

NP ¢

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 26 June 2017
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ANNEXURE I TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADITYA BIRLA CAPITAL LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Aditva Birla Capital Limited
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Aditya Birla Capital Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company™} and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

I'he respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
MNote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.  These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequale internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act, including with respect to BSLI, the provisions of the Insurance
Act, 1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws (Amendment} Act, 20015 read with Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority of India circular IRDA/F&A/CIR/CPM/056/03/2016 dated
April 4, 2016 (the “Insurance Act™), the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999
(the “IRDA Act”), the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, orders/directions issued by the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (the “IRDA™) in this regard.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
ol Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143010} of the Act, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
ellectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
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appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that {1) perfain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only m accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
ertor of fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Chpinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
an auditor’s report of seven subsidiaries, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which
are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls svstem over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating elTectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

Other Matters

{a} Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company, insofar as it
relates to these seven subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary incorporated in India.

(b} The auditors of Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited (*BSLI"Y, a subsidiary company,
have reported that the actuarial valuation of liabilities of BSLI for life policies in force and
policies where premium is discontinued is required to be certified by the Appointed Actuary
as per the Insurance Repulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies) Repulations, 2002 (the “IRDA
Financial Statements Repulations™) read with Insurance Regulatory and Development
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Authority of India circular IRDA/F&A/CIR/CPMAS6/03/2016 dated April 4, 2016, and has been
relied upon by the auditors of BSLL as mentioned in “Other Matter” para (b} of our audit report
on the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as at and for the vear ended
March 31, 2017, Accordingly, auditors of BSLI have not audited the internal financial controls
aver financial reporting in respect of the valuation and accuracy of the aforesaid actuarial
valuation.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
1AL Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E3000035

ke
L T __._.-—_;-'—'—‘_f

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number; 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 26 June 2007




Aditya Birla Capital Limited

{Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)

CIN: UBTF120G)2007 PLOOSBESD
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017
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The accampanyirg Mates are an Integral part of the Financlal Statements.

A pet au atmched Repart e ewer dates
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Chaortered Accountanty
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

{Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)

CIN: UG7120G)2007PLCOSEE90

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Tincrore
Year Ended Year Ended
Note No. 31st March, 2017 315t March, 2016
Revenue from Operations 18 5,805.69 3,597.95
Other Incame 19 5,18 71.18
Total Revenue 5.885.87 3,669.13
Expenses
Employee Benefits Expenses 20 717.21 5p1.24
Brokerage and Discounts 34456 190.35
Finance Cost refating to lending activity of Subsidiaries 214 2,288.27 1,599.89
Finance Cost 218 10.83 881
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 22 431.17 32.85
Benefit Paid (Insurance Business) 416.17 -
Change in valuaticn of liability in respect of insurance 23A 276.86
policies in force
Other Expenses ] 723.06 467.34
Total Expenses 4,820.13 2,800.48
Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Item 1,065.74 BG68.65
Less : Excaptional items 2 -
Profit Before Tax 1,065.74 368.65
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 380,47 37291
MAT Credit (0.36) {0.36)
Short/[Excess) Provision for Tax of Earlier Years {Met) 2.00 717
Deferred Tax [7.52) [35.15)
Profit for the Year £91.15 524.08
Profit for the Year Attributable to
Owners of Parent 530.00 380.53
Minority Interest 161.15 143,55
Profit for the Year {A) + {B) 691.15 524.08
Basic Earnings Per Share (7] | 6.35 5.01
Diluted Earnings per Share () - 24 6.35 4,34
{Face Value of T 10/- each)
Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying Notes are an Integral part of the Financial Statements.
As per aur attached Report of even date
For 5. R. Batlibol & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
CAl Fiern registration no 301003E/E300005
v ( Q.? =
Towe" 4'—-—-"‘9-'-- e «l—"‘fk }:‘Hr P WLEL
Per Shrawan Jalan Shriram lagetiya Pinky Mehta e
Fartner Cirector Director B bralglion
Membership Mo, 102102 CIM-01638250 DN 00020429 1 L%

[_ | MUMBAI

Sailesh Daga —_—
Company Secretary

Mumbai, 26th lune, 2Q1E=—= Mumbai, 26th June, 2017

p ALY
e




Aditys Birla Capital Limited { Formerly known as Aditya Birla Fnancial Services Limited)

Cansolidated Cash How Statement
For Ehe year ended 31st BMarch |, 2017
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Procesds from Shart teim including current matuiitses
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to A
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Net increass in Cash and Cash Equivabants

Opening Cash snd Cash Eguivalents

Aglid : Cash and cash eguivabonts of 3 Subsidiany on acquisition

thereol

Closing Cashk and Cash Equivalents

Significant Accpunting Policies

The accompanying Motes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Az per pur attached Repart of even date
Faor 5. . Batlibai & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Shriram Jagetiya Pinky Mehta

Directos Director
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Campany Secratary
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE: 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

I. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) comprise the financial statement of Aditya Birla Capital
Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited) (“Company”) and its Subsidiaries,
(herein after referred to as “Group Companies” and together as “Group”) (Refer Annexure ‘A’ to Note —
1} .The CF5 of the Group have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in compliance
with all material aspect of the Accounting Standards (AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies
Act , 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules 2014, in case of
Mon-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as
applicable to NBFC and in case of Housing Finance Companies (HFC) directions and guidelines issued by
the Mational Housing Regulators as applicable to HFC, amended from time to time. The accounting
policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year,
except for the change in accounting policy explained in paragraph Il belaw.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal
operating cycle, and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as upto twelve months for the
purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

1. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

As per the requirements of pre-revised Accounting Standard (AS) 4, the Aditya Birla Finance Limited and
Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited used to create a liability for dividend proposed, declared after
the balance sheet date if dividend related to periods covered by the financial statements. Going
forward, as per AS 4(R), the Company cannot create provision for dividend proposed/ declared after the
balance sheet date unless a statute requires otherwise. The Company need to disclose the same in
notes to the financial statements. Accordingly, the Company has disclosed dividend proposed by Board
of Directors after the balance sheet date in the notes.

Had the Company continued with creation of provision for proposed dividend, its surplus in the
statement of profit and loss account would have been lower by Rs. 9.68 Crs and current provision
would have been higher by Rs, 8.68 Crs [ including dividend distribution tax of Rs. 1.64 Crs).

. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
management to make judgments’, estimates and assumption that affect reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the date of the financial
statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although, these estimates
are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
judgments, assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

V. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures required for
L V“t{ne preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements as laid down—under the




Accounting Standard (AS) — 21, “"Consolidated Financial Statements”. The Consolidated Financial
Statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group.

The excess/deficit of cost to the Company of its investment over its portion of net worth in the
consolidated entities at the respective dates, on which the investment in such entities was made, is
recoghised in the CFS as Goodwill/Capital reserve,

Minarity Interest in the net assets of Subsidiaries consists of:

i.  The amount of equity attributable to the minorities at the date on which investment in Subsidiary
is made.

ii.  The minorities” share of movements in equity since the date the parent —subsidiary relationship
came into existence,

Entities acquired during the year have been consolidated from the respective dates of their acquisition.

List of companies included in Consolidation are mentioned in Annexure A

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
its intended use.  Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for
machinery. When significant parts of fixed assets are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accardingly. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

Depreciation an Tangible Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method using the rates arrived at hased
an the useful lives as specified in the Schedule || of the Companies Act, 2013 or estimated by the
management, The Group has used the following useful life to provide depreciation on its fixed assets.

A) Assets where useful life differs from Schedule Ii:-

Asset Useful Life as Prescribed by | Estimated Useful Life
Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013

30 Years B0 Years

1. Buildings

2. Dffice Electronic Equipments 5 Years 4 Years

3. Office Computers (end user devices B¥eny ¥ Vaarsta 5vasrs

desktop, laptops |

| 6 Years 3 Years to 5 Years
4, Servers

5. Vehicles 8-10 Years 4 Years to 5 years .

; ' 5 Years :
6. Electrically operated vehicles SRS ¢

10 Years 2 Years to 10 years

7. Furniture & Fixtures and Other Office
Equipments

Useful life of assets different from prescribed in Schedule || has been estimated by management
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B} Leasehold Assets:

| 1. Leasehold Improvements Period of Lease

Period of Lease

| 2. Leasehold land

Fixed Assets, individually costing less than Rupees five thousands, are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase.

Depreciation on the Fixed Assets added/disposed off/discarded during the year is provided on pro-rata
basis with reference to the manth of addition/disposal/discarded,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND AMORTISATION

Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives,

Assets Estimate Useful Life
[l Brands/ Trademarks _ 5tolOyears —
L Computer Software 2tobyears
I. Investment Management Rights Over period of 10 years
V. Non- Compete Fees - 3 Years
V. Goodwill on Consolidation Not being amortised (Tested for Impairment|

Intangible assets under development

Expenditure on development eligible far capitalisation are carried as Intangible asset under development
where such assets are not yet ready for intended use.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors, An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost
of the assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss, if any, is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. Reversal of impairment losses
recognised in the prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses
recognised for the assets no longer exist or have decreased,

BORROWING COST
Borrowing Costs attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a part
of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use.

Other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are
incurred,

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY ITEMS

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are reported using closing rate of exchange at the end of
the year. With respect to exchange difference arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign
currency itemns from 1st April, 2011, the Group has adopted following policy:

Foreign exchange difference on account of a depreciable asset is adjusted in the cost.of the
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depreciable asset, which would be depreciated over the balance life of the asset,

ii. In ather cases, the foreign exchange difference is accumulated in a Foreign Currency Monetary
ltem Translation Difference Account, and amortised over the balance period of such long-term
asset/liability.

Exchange difference on restatement of all other monetary items is recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss. Other non-monetary items like fixed assets, investments in equity shares are carried in

terms of historical cost using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Translation of foreign subsidiary is done in accordance with AS — 11 (Revised) - “The Effects of Changes

in Foreign Exchange Rates”. In the case of subsidiaries, the operation of which are considered as

integral, the Balance Sheet items have been translated at closing rate except share capital and fixed
assets, which have been translated at the transaction date. The income and expenditure items have
been translated at the average rate for the year. Exchange Gain/{Loss) is recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss,

In case of subsidiaries, the operation of which are considered as non-integral, all assets and liabilities
are caonverted at the closing rate at the end of the year and items of income and expenditure have heen
translated at the weighted average rates, where such rates approximate the exchange rate at the date
of transaction. Exchange gain/{loss) arising on conversion is recognised under Foreign Currency
Translation Reserve.

INVESTMENT

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the
date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments
are classified as long-term investments.

Investments are recorded at cost on the date of purchase, which includes acquisition charges such as
brokerage, stamp duty, taxes, etc. but excludes pre-acquisition interest i.e. (from the previous coupon
date to the transaction settlement date), if any, on purchase. If an investment is acquired in exchange
of another asset, the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair value of the asset given up or by
reference to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is more clearly evident.

Current Investments are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Long term investments are
stated at cost after deducting provisions made, if any, for other than temporary diminution in the
value.

Investments of Life Insurance Business

Investments are made in accordance with the Insurance Act, 1938, the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority [Investment) Regulations, 2000, the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority {Investment) (Amendment) Regulations, 2001, and various other circulars/notifications issued
by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority in this context from time to time,

= Debt Securities-
a) Investments of Shareholders’ fund and non-linked fund of Policyholders: All debt securities,
including government securities, are considered as 'held to maturity’ and stated at amortised cost.

b} Policyholders’ linked funds: All debt securities, including government securities, are valued using
CRISIL Bond Value/CRISIL Gilt Prices, as applicable,

# Equity Shares —

Listed eguity shares are valued and stated at fair value, using the last guoted closing prices on the
Mational Stock Exchange (NSE), at the Balance Sheet date. If the equity shares are not traded on the
MSE, then closing prices of the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) is considered. Equity shares-acquired
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through primary markets, and awaiting listing are valued at their issue price. Unlisted equity shares are
valued as per the valuation policy duly approved by its Investment Committee,

#  Mutual Funds - Mutual fund units are valued at previous day's Net Asset Value.

STOCK OF SECURITIES OF NBFC BUSINESS
Stocks of securities of NBFC Business are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
cost of purchase and other directly attributable cost towards purchase costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated fair value of securities as on the Balance Sheet date.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and can be reliably measured.

Revenue from services are recognised as they are rendered based on agreements/arrangements
with the concerned parties and recognised net of Service Tax. In case of fixed price contracts
revenue is recognised on percentage of completion method and revenue from time and materials
contract is recognised as the services are provided.

Interest Income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and applicable interest rate except in case of NBFC business non-performing assets are
recognised on receipt basis.

Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is
established.

For Life Insurance Business, revenue is recognised as follows:

Premium is recognised as income when due from policyholders. For unit-linked businesses, premium
income is recognized when the associated units are created, Premiurm on lapsed policies is recognised as
income when such policies are re-instated. Premiums are net of Service Tax on risk premium collected, if
any.

In case of Linked Business, Top-up premiums paid by policyholders are considered as single premium and
are unitised as prescribed by the regulations. This premium is recognised when the associated units are
created.

Income from linked policies, which includes asset management fees, policy administration charges,
maortality charges and other charges, if any, are recovered from the linked funds in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the policies and recognised when due.

Accretion of discount and amortisation of premium relating to debt securities is recagnised over the
remaining maturity period on a straight-line basis.

The realised gain/loss on debt securities held for linked business and on sale of equity shares/mutual fund
units is the difference between the net sale consideration and weighted-average cost.

Reinsurance premium ceded is accounted for at the time of recognition of the premium income in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant treaties with the reinsurers, Impact on account
of subsequent revisions to or cancellations of premium is recognised in the year in which they occur,

Income from Financial Services includes brokerage and fees on mutual fund units, bonds, fixed
eposits, IPOs private equity and other alternative products, and services which is recognised when
ue, on completion af transaction. Management fees are recognised on accrual basisl,atfspgciﬁ!:

e 0 N0
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rates, applied on the average daily net assets of each scheme. The fees charged are in accordance
with the terms of Scheme Information Documents of respective schemes and are in line with the
provisions of SEBI (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time. Advisory and
portfolio management fees are accounted on an accrual basis as per contractual terms with clients.
Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the tenure of the instrument on a straight-line
basis. Stock and Commodity Brokerage Income is recognised on the trade date of the transaction
upon confirmation of the transactions by the exchanges. Trusteeship fee s recognised on an accrual
basis, in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed.

BEMEFITS PAID {INCLUDING CLAIMS)

In case of Life Insurance Business, deaths and other claims are accounted for, when naotified.
Survival and maturity benefits are accounted when due. Surrenders/Withdrawals under linked
policies are accounted in the respective schemes when the associated units are cancelled.
Reinsurance recoverable thereon is accounted for in the same period as the related claim.
Repudiated claims, disputed before judicial authorities, are provided for based on the management
prudence considering the facts and evidences available in respect of such claims.

SCHEME EXPENSES (ASSET MANAGEMENT BUSINESS)

Expenses relating to New Fund Offer are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Expenses of
schemes of  Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund in excess of the stipulated limits as per SEBI {Mutual Fund)
Regulations, 1996, and expenses incurred directly (inclusive of advertisement/brokerage of
expenses) on behalf of the schemes of Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred. Trail Commission paid for future period for
Equity Link Saving Schemes (ELSS), Fixed Tenure Schemes, Close-ended Schemes and Systematic
Investment Plans (SIPs) in the different schemes during the year are treated as prepaid expenses,
and such brokerage and commission are expensed out over three years in case of ELSS or duration
of closed schemes or over the duration of the SIP. Any other brokerage/commission is expensed in
the year in which they are incurred. Brokerage paid in advance in respect of Portfolio Management
Business is amortised over the contractual period.

DISTRIBUTION COST (PRIVATE EQUITY FUND)

Distribution costs incurred by the Group in respect of Private Equity - Fund | and the Aditya Birla
Private =Sunrise Fund, have been accrued over the Commitment Period and the extended
Commitment Pericd of the Fund | and the Sunrise Fund, respectively, as defined in the Fund’s
Private Placement Memorandum,

FUND FOR FUTURE APPROPRIATION AND FUND FOR DISCONTINUED POLICIES (LIFE INSURANCE
BUSINESS)

Amounts estimated by the Appointed Actuary as Funds for Future Appropriation in respect of lapsed
Unit Linked Policies are set aside in the Balance Sheet, and are not available for distribution to
shareholders until expiry of the revival period. Premium Discontinuance Fund represents the fund
value of all policies which are issued and discontinued after July 2010 and are set-aside in the
Balance Sheet as per requirement of relevant regulations.

RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) Defined Contribution Plan:
The Group makes defined contribution to Government Employee Provident Fund, Government
Employee Pension Fund, Employee Deposit Linked Insurance, ES| and Superannuation Scheme which
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

b} Defined Benefit Plan



The Group's liabilities under Payment of Gratuity Act, long-term compensated absences and pension
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the
projected unit credit method except for short-term compensated absences which are provided for
based on estimates. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss as income or expense. Obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash
flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet
date on Government bonds where the terms of the Government bonds are consistent with the
estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation.

In respect of certain employees, Provident Fund contributions are made to a Trust administered by the
Group, The interest rate payable to the members of the Trust shall not be lower than the statutory
rate of interest declared by the Central Government under the Employees’ Provident Funds and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, and shaortfall, if any, shall be made good by the Group. The
Group's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit Method) at the end of the
year, and any shortfall in the Fund size maintained by the Trust set up by the Group is additionally
provided for. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which they arise.

¢} Long term Incentive Plan
Provision for long term incentive plan for different cadre of employees is based on the estimated
future liability of long term plan and same is assessed on yearly basis.

XVill. EMPLOYEE STOCK DPTIONS
The stock options and Stock appreciation rights (SAR) granted are accounted for as per the accounting
treatment prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India and the Guidance Note on Accounting
for Employee Share-based Payments, issued by the ICAI, whereby the intrinsic value of the option is
recognised as employee compensation. The employee compensation is charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss on the straight-line basis over the vesting period of the option.

In respect of re-pricing of existing stock options, the incremental intrinsic value of the options is accounted
as employee cost over the remaining vesting period.

In case of forfeiture stock option which is not vested, amortised portion is reversed by-credit to employee
compensation expense. In a situation where the stock option expires unexercised, the related balance
standing to the credit of the employees Stock Options Outstanding Account are transferred to the General
Reserve.

XIX. TAXATION
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax,

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income far the current accounting year
in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961, and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions the
Group operates,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted far,
using the tax rates and laws that have been substantively enacted as of the Balance Sheet date, Deferred
tax assets arising from timing differences are recognised to the extent there is reasonable certamt'y' that
these would be realised in future,
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. The Group
writes down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably
certain that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can
be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain that
sufficient future taxable income will be available.

In case of unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation, deferred tax assets thereon are
recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be
realised against future taxable profit. At each Balance Sheet date the Group reassesses
unrecognised deferred tax assets.

Minimum Alternatives Tax {MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the companies in the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. In the year, in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance
with the recommendations contained in the Guidance MNote issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and
shown as MAT Credit Entitlement. The companies in the Group review the same at each Balance Sheet
date and write down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer
convincing evidence to the effect that Group will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period,

OPERATING LEASES

i. Asalessee:
Leases where significant portion of risk and reward of ownership are retained by the Lessor are
classified as Operating Leases, and lease rentals thereon are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss on a straightline basis over the lease term.

ii. Asa Lessor;
The Group has leased certain tangible assets and such leases, where the Group has substantially
retained all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases,

Lease income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over lease
term. Initial direct costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

FINAMNCE LEASE

As a Lessee:;

Leases where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are
transferred to the Lessee are classified as finance lease. The group has capitalised the leased item at lower of
fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease and disclosed as
leased assets. Such assets are amortised over the period of lease or estimated life of such asset whichever is
l2ss.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on
imnplicit rate of return, Finance charges are charged directly against income. Lease management fees, lease
charges and other initial direct costs are capitalised.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and cash
at bank including fixed deposit with ariginal maturity period of three moenths or less and short-term
highly liguid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, o CARR
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SEGMENT REPORTING
The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies
adopted for the Group.

The Group's operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the nature of
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers
different products and serves different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the
areas in which major operating divisions of the Group operate.

Further, inter-segment revenue have been accounted for based on the transaction price agreed to
between segments which is primarily market based,

Unallocated items include general corporate income and expense items, which are not allocated to any
business segment,

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted-average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted-average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events such as bonus issue;
bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation
of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Contingent Liabilities are possible but not probable abligation as on the Balance Sheet date, based on the
available evidence.

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made.

Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date.

In case of NBFC Business, Non-performing loans are written off/provided for, as per management
estimates, subject to the minimum provision required as per the Non-Banking Financial {Mon-Deposit
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential Morms {Reserve Bank)] Directions, 2015. Provision on
Standard assets is made @ 0.30% as per the notification DNBR 009/ CGM {CD5)-2015 dated March 27,
2015 issued by Reserve Bank of India.

case of Housing Finance Companies, Overdue loans are written off/provided for, as per management
tirmates, subject to the minimum provision required as per Housing Finance Companies INHB}_



Directions, 2010 as amended. Provision on Standard assets is made as per Housing Finance Companies

{NHB} Directions, 2010.

_Annexure ‘A’ to Note — 1 “Significant Accounting Policies”

Particulars Country of Prupori:igﬁ_&? Proportion of
Incorporation Ownership Ownership

Interest as on Interest as on
March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

SUBSIDIARIES

Aditya  Birla  Capital  Advisors  Private India 100.00% 100.00%

Limited (ABCAPL) N

Aditya Birla Customer Services Limited {ABCSL) India 93.70% 93.70%

(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Custamer

Services Private Limited) S S

Aditya Birla Trustee Company Private Limited india 100.00% 100.00% |

_(aTCPL)

ABCAP Trustee Company Private Limited [w.ef ' India  100.00% 100.00%
25" March, 2016) o B

Aditya Birla Money Limited (ABML) | India 75.00% 75.00%
Aditya Birla Commodities Broking Limited India 75.00% 75.00%

 (ABCBL) (100% Subsidiary of ABML) o
Aditya Birla Financial Shared Services Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
[ABFS5L) )

___fgd__i:cy_a Birla Finance Limited (ABFL) India 90.23% | 90.45% |
Aditya Birla Housing Finance Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited {w.e.f India 51.00% 100.00% |
28th March, 2018)

-Aditva Birla Wellness Private Limited {w.e.f. 23" India 51.00%

lune, 2016) _ _ Wil

Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited [w.e.f. India 51.00% Nil

23" March, 2017)

Aditya Birla Insurance Brokers Limited (ABIBL) India 50.01% 50.01%

Aditya Birla Money Mart Limited [ABMBML} India 100.00% 100.00%

Aditya Birla Money Insurance Advisory Services India 100.00% 100.00%

 Limited (ABMIASL) (100% Subsidiary of ABMML)

Birla Sun Life Asset Management Company India 51.00% 51.00%

Limited (BSAMC) o

Birla Sun Life AMC (Mauritius) Ltd. (100% Mauritius 51.00% 51.00%

Subsidiary of BSAMC)

Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Ltd., Dubal [100% Dubai 51.00% 51.00%

Subsidiary of BSAMC)

Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Pte. Ltd., Singapore Singapore 51.00% 51.00%

(100% Subsidiary of BSAMC) ) )

India Advantage Fund Limited* (Subsidiary of Mauritius |  51.00% 51.00%

BSAMC)

International Opportunities Fund SPC {IOF)** | Cayman 51.00% 51.00%

ISubsidiary of BSAMC) islands

Birla Sun Life Trustee Company Private Limited | India 50.85% 50.85%

(BSTPL) B

Global Clean Energy Fund SPC [100% Subsidiary Singapore 51.00% Nil

of Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Pte. Ltd., Singapore

(w.e.f 1" April, 2016)*** Py
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Birla Sum Life Pension Management Limited India 51.00% Nil
{100% Subsidiary of Birla Sun Life Insurance
Company Limited (w.e.f, 107" March, 2017} B
Aditya Birla ARC Limited (w.e.f. 10th March, India 100.00% il
2017)

* India Advantage Fund Limited [IAFL), wholly owned Subsidiary of Birla Sun Life Asset Management Company
Limited, is a collective investment scheme set up as a fund in Mauritius with the status of a limited company
under the Mauritius Companies Act. In terms of constitution and private placement memorandum, IAFL has
classes of redeemable participating shares, Each class of participating shares has its own Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, The Profit/Loss of each such class belongs to the participating shareholders of that
class. Birla Sun Life Asset Management Company Limited (BSAMC) owns 100% of the management share, and
management shareholder is not entitled to any beneficial interest in the profit/loss of various classes nor is
required to make good any shortfall. In substance, there are no direct or indirect economic benefits received by
the management shareholders. The substance over form must prevail. Accordingly, the Group has not
consalidated |AFL in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

** Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Pte Limted, Singapore has made investment in international Oppartunities Fund,
International Opportunities Fund SPC{IOF) is segregated portfolio company set up as a fund in Cayman islands
under the Cayman Islands Monetary Act. In terms of constitution and private placement memorandum, 1OF has
various segregated paortfolio which issue redeemable participating shares. Each Segregated Portfolio of
participating shares has its own Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account. The Profit/Loss each such Portfolio
belongs to the participating shareholders of that segregated portfolio. Aditya Birla Sun Life Asset Management
Pte, Limited [ABSLAMC) owns 100% of the management share and management shareholder is not entitled to
any beneficial interest in the profit/loss of various segregated portfolios nor is required to make good any
shartfall. In substance there are no direct or indirect economic benefits received by the management
shareholders, The substance over form must prevail. Accordingly, the Group has not consolidated 10F in the
Consolidated Financial Statemeant.

***Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Pte. Limited, Singapore has made investment in Global Clean Energy Fund SPC
(GCEF) is established as a segregated portfolio company in Cayman Islands under the Cayman Islands Monetary
Act. In terms of constitution and private placement memorandum, GCEF has facility to create multiple
segregated portfolio which issue redeemable participating shares. Each Segregated Portfolio of participating
shares will have its own Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account. The Profit / Loss arising from each such
Portfolio belongs to the participating shareholders of that segregated portfolio. Aditya Birla Sun Life Asset
Management Company Pte Limited (ABSLAMC) owns 100% of the management share and management
shareholder are not entitled to any beneficial interest in the profit / loss of various segregated portfolios nor is
required to make good any shortfall. In substance there are no direct or indirect economic benefits received by
the management shareholders, The substance over form must prevail. Accordingly, the Group has not
consolidated GCEF in the Consolidated Financial Statement, e




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
[Formerly known as Aditya Bifa Financial Services Limited)
Notas forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE: 24

SHAHE CAPITAL
Autharised:

Equity shares of ¥ 10/- sech

Praferarce Shares of T 13/ sach

lisund, Subscribed & Paid-up
Equity Share Capital
Equity shares af T10/- sech fuily pald-up

Preferance Share Capltal
D% Mon Cumblative Comoulsarily Coavertible Praference Shares of T 20/~ each fuliy peid up

5% Man Conveitible Kar Cumuiatve Redeermabis Preference Skares of T 10/ aach fully paid up

% Man Corvertisls har Cumilatve Redesmabos Preterence Shares of T 10y ench fully pald up

Mede: Figures In italks represent the number of shares foe the provious year.

Tin crone

As at A ab

Humbar ef ghares 31st March, 2017 Jist March, 2016

2,20, 00,00,000 1,200,00 1,00040
11,05,03,03,030)

1,80,00,00,000 1,800.00 1000000
13,04,05,04,000)

4.000.00 4,000.00
1,33,72,40,000 123224 TaGaL
(78,65,10,000)

= = 33650
{73,55,0,005)
- . 18711
1,271, 115,000)
- - 13pac
f2a,0d, 20,005
ipis  __ aswe

1] Recoassatian of the number of shares outstanding #1 the baginning anc st the erd of the period

55, Daseigtion As ot ¥1s1 March, 2017 As at_31st March, 2016
| Mo, Equity Shares Profarence Shares Lqulty Shates Freforence Shares

1 |Mo of Shares Quistanding at the baginning of the .60, 10,000 1,80 7610000 75,70,10,000 1,13.76,10,000
perad
Allotment of fully paid up shares during the year d0,25, 80,000 - 2,50,00,002 §%,00,00,000

3 [Allatment of party pald ap shares during the . - S 20,00,00,000
year

4 |Canwersiar af Preferarce Snares irta Equity 3,36, 50,000 (33,65,00,000] 1,40,00,000 |14,00,00,000|
Shares by the Pramos |

% |hedemplan of Preference Snares 11,47,12,10,200] -

& |Ma. of Sharses Dutsterding &t the and of the 1,73,22.40,000 ] F9,60,12,000 1,80,74,10,000
periad

2} Term/Right Atached o Equity Shares

The Comanny ks caly ane chass of eoulty sheres having a par salue of £ 10 per snere, Each hoider of egulty shares = eniited te ane vate per share,
i the svens af lguldasien of the Compary, the hoders of seJlty shares will be entitled te receiva samaining assets of the Company, after distribution S0 all preferantisl
halders, The dlstribution will be in groportion to the rumbaer of the sculty shares beld by the sharehelders.

3} Fraity Shares ia the Campany held by eachk skarakalger halding moe thar 5 pef ceat skares ard thae namber of eguity shores qild are as urder:

Equity Shares

| Ag at 31st March, 2017

s at_31st March, 2016

L
| Name of Sharehaller % of Tatal Paid-up el 5 of Total Pald-up
M, |. Mo of Shares eld Equity Share Capital M al Shares Exqulty Share Capital
1 | Actya Girls Nuva Limited [with nominees| 1,13,32,40.000 10 ¥3,57,10,000 99.96%

1) Pradgrence Sharos

g at 11st March, 2017

i ap 315t March, 2016

= of Total Pald-up

5% af Tetal Paid-up

sr,
] Wama of Sharehalder Ne of Sharas Hald Proferonce Share | Mo af Shares Held Preference Share
Capltal Capital
l_i- Additya Birla Hava Lmited h 1,80,75,10,200 00
HOTE: 2
PREFEREMCE SHARE ISSUED BY SUBSIDIARY COMPAMIES
2.001% Cormpulsatily Convert ola Praference Shares of ¥ 10/- each, fully pale-ap of the 479 4.0
Subsidiary Company
1% Curniiative redeerakie orefarence shares of T 10/ gech, fuly paid up of the Subsidiary 18,00 10,00
Compariy
14,70 14.70

e {'\' [ - ;l'..-)_. "

\




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
MNotes forming part of Conselidated Financial Statements

Tincrore
As at A5 at
3Lst March, 2017 315t March, 2016
NOTE: 3
HESERVES AND SURPLLS
1} Capital Reserve on consofidation
Dpening Balange as per last avdited Financial Statements 6472 102,79
Ceduction: Adjustmenrt on stake change of Aditya Birla Finance Lirmited 16,31 3807
ag.41 64.72
2} Securities Premlum Account
Opening Balance as per lost audited Financial Statements TE6.30 392,36
Additian:
Premium on conversion of preference shares to equity shares 30283 126.00
Premium on allotment of frash equity shares 147548 215,00
Fremiurm on issde of comgulsory convertible preference shares of the subsidiary carmpany 3 23.04
3,540.63 TE6.30
3] Other Reserves
1) General Reserve
Jpening Balance as per last audited Financial Statemants 559 4,86
Additian
Tearsies from Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss - 213
6.99 6.58
il Special Resarde™
Dpening Balance as per last avdited Financial Statements 0547 12767
Additien:
Transfer from Surptus in the Staterment of Profit and Loss 117.10 H1.80
326,57 20547
iil) capital Fund"™ 0oL .01
Iw) Foreign Currency Translation Reserne
Opening Balance as per last audited Financial Statements 109 147
Addition;
Additian During the Year - .42
Deduction:

Oeduction during the year 0.44
1,65 .09

wh Credit/[Debit] Fair Value Change Account
Cpening Balance as per last audited Financial Statement -
adaition (Deduction| during the year D.03

Tatal .03
Tatal Other Reserves 135.25 218.56
4] Surplus/[Deficit] in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance & per last audited Financial Statement BT1LED Al636
Addition:
Prafit of the Year 529 82 350,53
Marger of MGLRCL with ARFL - 15113
Stake change in Subsidiaries 15584

Less: Appropriations

Transfer va General Reserve - 213

Transfer to Special Resarve 117,10 HLED

Dividend on Preference shares issued by subsidiary Company i D.ED

Corgarate Tax an Proposed Dividend of Subsidiaries - 1.79
Corgorate tax on Interim Dividend on Preference Shares 5.19 3

1,434.90 A7L.60

5,361,215 1,921.18

Special Reserve

Special Reserve represents the reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the *RBI Act”]. In terms of Sacton 45-1C af the RBI Act, a Non-Hanking
Finance Compary is required Lo transfer an amaunt nat less than 20 per cent of s net prafit 1o a Reserve Fund before declaring any dividend. Appropriatian fram this
Reserve Fund s permitted only for the purposes specified by ABL

|by Capiral Fund
Capital fund comprises an amaunt recelved, on a non-repatriable basis from the Sponser, a3 & contribution to the Birla Sun Life Mutual Fund (e Fund’] in accordance
with the terms of the Trust Deed, together with accretion thereon. The amount is held by the Company in its fiduciary capacity as the trusten to the Fund and is
intended ta be utilised anly for the purposes of settlement of claims, IF any, from the unit holders of the mutual fund schemes launched by the Fund,

B CA =




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
MNotes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE: 4A
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

SECURED

Debentures

Rupee Term Loans from Banks
Finance Lease Liabilities

UNSECURED
Debentures
Rupee Term Loans from Others

Total

NOTE: 4B
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

SECURED
Term Loan
Loan Repayable on Demand from Banks

UMSECURED

Loan Repayable on Demand fram:
Banks
Others

Other Loans and Advances
Commercial Papers®
Loans from Related Parties

Total
*Commercial Papers are shown net of unamortised discounting charges.

—m
- 1HA .‘.\I\_\

'.'-:.r .l,' 1 ] .
A I L) A
VA =P

fincrore
As at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
B,174.90 5,156.00
B,609.74 8,489.64
8.86 3.80
16,793.50 13,649.44
1,395.00 696.50
1.00 0.65
1,400.00 697.15
18,193.50 14,346.59
1,272.54 -
1,667.56 2,662.72
2,940.10 2,662.72
200,00 209.25
7.23
#,538.50 4,295 82
- 6.74
&,745.73 4,511.81
11,685.83 7,174.53




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE: 5A
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Trade Payables
Interest Accrued but Not Due on Borrowings
Other Payables

Advance from Customers

Income Received in Advance

Others

Liability for Rent Straight Lining

NOTE: 58
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long-term Borrowings
Current Maturities of Finance Lease Obligations
Current maturities of Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
Interest Accrued but Not Due on Borrowings
Income Received in Advance
Other Payables
Advance from Customers
Bank Overdraft
Payables for Capital Expenditure
Statutory Dues
Deposits
Due to Life Insurance Policyholders
Unallocated premium
Others

As at
31st March, 2017

Tin crore
As at
31st March, 2016

: 45.06
163.89 154.84
237 0.17
0.15 -
0.02 2.61
11.12 -
177.55 202.68
1,050.81 1,490,07
3.70 131
2,004.00 -
573.52 250.52
8.24 7.47
181.45 108.37
527.52 648.40
8.67 3.68
38.15 20,62
8.26 11.70
174.74 *
54,73 -
170.80 52.07
4,804.59 2,594.21




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
{Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE: 6A

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

Provisions for:
Employee Benefits

Others
Contingent Provision on Standard Asset of Financing Activities
Provision for Doubtful Loans and Advances of Financing Activities
Other Long-term Provisions#
Provision for Soft accounts

Total

NOTE: 6B
SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
Prowvisions for:
Employee Benefits
Others
Taxation [Net of Advance Tax)
Preference shares
Provision for Corporate Tax on Dividend
Equity shares
Praference shares
Contingent Provision on Standard Asset of Financing Activities
Reserve for unexpired risk

As at
31st March, 2017

Tin crore
As at
31st March, 2016

# Additional Disclosure as per Accounting Standard - 29 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”

A Warranty

Opening Balance

Arising during the year
Utilisad

Unused Amounts Reversed
Closing Balance

Long-tarm

Shortterm

68,93 17.96
105,76 58.94
89.03 101.94
2.04 0.18
20,23 =
285.98 179.02
175.67 56.37
5.80 2670
- .80
- 1.62
- 017
33.26 26.58
o 37.74 -
252.57 112.24
0.18 0.11
.01 0.o7
[0.04)
0.15 0.18
0.15 0.18
0.15 0.18




‘sayndsip §0 UONNosE) 0] [3Algns Si 0nous BUL 40 INoARY Ul (A10.7 §T°0 1B SO 80007 S0 2 )0 PUET POYZR0 J2 uonensday (i)

sapnpu; spasty 3jgidue) 10 pog SIS (Y

ve Ik [53 O6ET £0'E ] [[E] 18T sT'D GT0Z MM ISTE 1 5E 32018 12N
95001 TP BES 05’3 ETOT [T SLE <TI0 LTDT "ypuep STE 18 SE I8 13N
SESEL oS 16 LEL EE0T S9RT GE'TS [4%"] - LTOT YIBN I5TE 1T W |
FLET4S fi g S0'Ze IETL ChiE LE'6T - LOREINEDY (siagiaar]  TesUsan] a8 sam [TFuBl]) a%EI5
{s00) - [E0'D) (tonl : {zoal - auaRYO uopesuel] fueymg udiBing
0E'6Z FET ESEl 95k BET BSE - - SUDNBEN
IY'9E 75T SEET $TT 552 i) =] 5 iy, 3 Jog
9T OT'E 09 ge Ll #0'ST ES1E = {00 GIOZ YT ISLE 28 5
(520l 00 00 = Zem - TIIRIALIT UOTEEUEL] FIURYIN a0 |
0T's 8D £99 3510 B0 50 - - SUORIE0
€8T LET SR 58T T BL'E £0°0 . e g oy
66'P0T ¥O'z 58S Er 01 TEET 2RET 00 ) STOZ ‘e 35T 1E Sy
:_u._uh._uu._g PRyENLLITIY
6L LvE TEBL 96T SvLt ETRCTS 0eis 2ET ST0 LI0Z TN BTE B 5
TOE9T 597 (130T 0z'st EEH FEOE - - IOmNEDY J5ea a0 e ls=n0] /i SeUe) a7els
(200 3 (00 (zoo) - [£0D) . aualay vonesues] aduelmg udiog
15'TE 307 6L 56t rT BE : suon3Eg
SPLS FEOL ER'ET BT £ Sk 2 SUCTp
TEEST 6L LE6L GEHT [ 13 [FRT ERT 51 9TOZ "YILEWN ISTE 38 5
[T - [=TE3] i) - Toe 00 - - EoUZ a0 UDNEJEUE] Sausin] uliaing
696G ETT 299 ot BDO 590 = Suon=ApR]
IT0E 8T 2971 £2T (1 LER I 4 SuDLp Py
GEEET bI'g 5L orHT BH9T raTE 570 ST ST0T “|udy 15T 31& 5
2043 F5045)
FRINNIY sjumudingy sjuawBnosdw s3uipying
WLOL SBPYIA Jusdinby 30440 At - i PRt M - PUE] plOYa3Id
51355V TIRITNVL
WL FL0OM

(pa11wn $321A135 [edUBULY BlIG BALPY SE UMOU) ASWIDS)
pajwn [ende) epng eAlpy



ELYE = TTE 1512 : 9T0T ‘y24elN ISTE 38 SE §30]g 13N
BL06 = ¥EE te' L8 - LTOT "YaJen ISTE 18 SE H20|F 19N
BE'BLE £EE'D BLYS £9°617 o'y £T0Z ‘Y4Bl ISTE I8 5Y
E9TET = = 96 LET L9°E uosinbay fsiadiawagiuawlssng [1aE1a facuey] ayels
099 - E6T L9E suonaagd
SLat - gE°0 LEOT - Jead 3yy Joj uonesilowy
09°LET £EED oS ETRL ¥o'v 9T0T ‘UYoiein ISTE 18 5V
91’1t - og1'1 SUoRRA
L9t = IOE 95 EL 610 122k ayj 104 UOHESIOWY
A EE'D EETS £°99 St STOZ jady 15T 1E 5y
juaunedu) fuoilesiuowy pajejnwnidy
9T 0LE EED 9°Ls L5°L0E o'y L1082 ‘Y2JBeN ISTE 1B 5Y
06°¢9T - EZ'BST £9E uoisinbay fsiadiawag fuawlsang/iadiapy /Fdueyd a3els
i = = SLE [9E suoi3a|ag
SEIS = r GE7S - SUDILpPY
EE'ZOT EED Z9°LS vL'66 ray ST0T "Y2E ISTE 3B 5Y
0Z'1 - - (g - SUDNBR0
BELT = = BELT : suciippy
ST ovt EED 945 958 It 510z ‘pady 35T 1B 5
H¥30|g 5040

S324 SIYSTY Juwadeue|y S ETEE
jL-Atell 2120 WOoY-UON JUBUISBAUY alemyos Jayndwod Jspuesg siEjnMKEd

S13SSY IT19IDNVYLINI
gL :31L0N

(pa1iwi] S221A13S |RIDURUL BlIIg BAJIPY SB UMOL) Ajjawiog)
paywi jexde) epig eAlpy




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
{Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Tin crore
As at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

MOTE: BA
INVESTMENTS OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS: NON-CURRENT
(i} Shareholders” Investments

Quoted
Inwestments in
Government or Trust Securities 687.91
Equity Instrument 15.00 -
Debentures/Bonds T96. 76
Unguoted
Investments in
Equity Instruments 1.25
Others 39.90
Less: Pravision for diminution on investrments .
Sub-Total - (i) 1,540.82 -

(i} Policyholders’ Investments

Quoted
Investments In
Equity Instruments 622,75
Preference Shares 0.26 -
Government ar Trust Securities 4,042.47
Cebentures and Bonds 2,672.38
mAutual Funds 0,98
Other .
Unguoted
Investments in
Others (Fixed Deposits) 61.10 -
Venture Capital Funds 7.75 -
Soclal Capital Fund 53.47 -
Sub-Total - i) 7,461.16 :
Total - (i} + [ii) 9,001.98 -
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments 9,400.00
Agpregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 8,838.51
Aggregate Book Value of Unguoted Investments 163.47




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE: BB
INVESTMENTS OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS: CURRENT

(i} Shareholders’ Investments

Quoted

IAyvestments in
Government or Trust Securities 1.00 =
Debentures/Bonds 24,40 -
Mutual Funds A.00 %

Unguoted

Investments in
Other 0.52
Fixed Deposits 32.15

Sub-Total - (i) 62.37 -

{il] Palicyholdars’ Investments

Quoted
Investments in
Government ar Trust Securities 19.95
Debentures/Bonds 47.58
Mutual Funds 265.52 -
Unquoted
Investments in
Others 53 16
Fixed Deposits 12.92
Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation 15.92 -
Sub-Total - (i) 415.06 a s
Total - {i] + {il) 477.43 .
Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments 363.05
Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 362.46 -

Aggregate Book Value of Unguoted Investments 114.98 -




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
{Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
MNotes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Tin crore
As at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

MNOTE: 94
INVESTIVIENTS OF HEALTH INSURANCE BUSINESS: NON-CURRENT

(i} Shareholders’ Investments

Quated
Investments in
Government or Trust Securities a4.70 -
Debentures/Bonds 102.43 -
Sub-Total - [i) 187.13 -

[ii} Policyholders’ Investments

Qucted = s
Unguoted . -
Sub-Total - {Ii) - -
Total - {i) + (ii] 187.13 -

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments 187.13 :
Aggregate Book Value of Guoted Investments 187.13 -

MWOTE: 9B
INVESTMENTS OF HEALTH INSURANCE BUSINESS: CURRENT

{1} Shareholders' Investments

Quoted
Invastments in
Debentures/Bonds 5.04 B
Mutual Funds 19.97 -
Other 9.85 =
Unguoted
Investments in
Fixed Deposits 6.93 -
Sub-Total - (i) 41.79 -

(i} Policyholders’ Investments

Quoted - -
Unquoted : =
Sub-Total - (i) 3 — =
Tatal - (i} + (i) 41.79 .
Agaregate Market Value of Quoted Investmeants 34.87 -
Apgregale Book Value of Quoted Investmants 34.86 -

Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments 6.93 -




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Tingrore
Asat A oat
Face Value Number af shares 31st March, 2017 Mumber of shares  31st March, 2016
MOTE: 108
OTHER INVESTMENTS : NOMN-CLURRENT
Imyaskment in

Equity Instruments
Subsidiaries [Refer Annesure & to Mote @ 1-IV] |Unquoted)

Class A In india Advantage Fund Limited, Mauritiug 510,00 an ] 50 i}
Class 8 in India Advantage Fund Limited, Maaritius S10.00 an 8 an i3
Irternatianal Opportunities Fund $0.01 1 L 1 L
] [
Othars
Birla Maragement Centre Services Limited 10.00 3,000 fi oon i
KF UElities India Private Limited 1.00 500,000 [ 5,00,000 0.0%
ROIL Limited 10,00 12,245 .46 12,245 D46
Less: Provision for dirminution (0.21)
Apallo Sindhaari Hotels Limited, 10.00 - - 3,005 .01
Liess: Provision far diminution 1001
0,44 0,30
Praference Shares (Unquoted)
0.00% % Opsionally Corvertible Cumulative Redeematle
Preference Shares in Share Microfin Umited 1083 aL, 72,750 3,57 98,54, 554 5.85
Less: Praviston Ter dirminution - 750
.57 2.35
Bebentures and Bonds
MHAI Bords 1000 11,124 111 11,126 111
Less: Provision for diminution = -
1.11 111
tutual Funds® 205.20 18002
205.20 180,02
Others
Unguated
Aditya Barla Private Equity - Fund | 7557 13237
Aditya Birla Private Eguity - Sunrise Fund 16,24 16.93
Class B Units of Aditya Biria Beal Extate Fund - 0.05
PRAS Investment 504 3.60
Inwestrrent i Alternate Fund 60.62 20.00
Sutual Funds 2712 -
Equity Instrumens o0
Lews: Provislan far guminutian (5.759) £
174,85 wmEs
TOTAL NON-CURRENT INVESTMENT 351.19 __&
Aggregate Market Value of CGuoted investments F18.85 169,44
Apgregate Book Value of Quoled Investments 106,37 155,74
Aggregate Book Value of Ungueted Investmants 154,43 21039
Aggregate amaunt of Provision for dirminution 9,79 ]
* Includes Earrmarked towards Capital Fund 0.04 0.04
T

AL ?
7 hILIBO, S
e S

e . G




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
[Farmerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Motes farming part of Consalidated Financial Statements

A5 at
Face Value HMumber of shares 31t March, 2017
NOTE: 108
OTHER INVESTMENTS ; CURRENT
Debentures and Commarcial Fapers

Mahindra Worldcity Jalgur Limited 10,00,000
Al Financiers (Indla) Limited 10,000,000
[alrria Cement Bharat Umited 10,00, 000 . .
KKR Financig! Services Private Limited 1,00, 00,000 inn 100.00
Indiabulls Housing Finance Company 15,00,000 - -
Karvy Financial Services Provate Limited (Commercial papers) 500,000 =
Wijaya Bank 184.70
Qe Bank inr.on
S0 Corp Private Umited 50.00
Bank of Baroita 125.00
Allahabad Bank 17.50
ICIC1 Bank Limites 100,00
fucls Bank Limited 100,00
794,20
Mutual Funds 75222
TOTAL CURRENT INVESTMENT 1,546,42
Agpregale Market Value of Quoted Investments 789
Apgregale Book value of Guoted investments 30600
Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investitents 151642

2 whTLIBA,
;{/-:.-.Q-"' ...._Hﬂt:}; ™

Tin crore
Ay at
Mumber of shares _ 31st March, 2016

1,650 165.00
1,000 100.00
1,000 100.00
50 50.00
500 50.00

465,00
53L.56
996,56

50.24

41.34
§55.22

f . MUMBAI ' - IIJ




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
MNotes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

As at
31st March, 2017

Tin crore

As at

31st March, 2016

NOTE: 11A
ASSET HELD TO COVER LINKED LIABILITIES OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS : NON-CURRENT

Quoted
Investrments in
Equity Instruments 9,984.78
Preference Shares 10.32
Government or Trust Securities 4,889.63
Debentures or Bonds 6,757.18
mutual Funds 243.97
21,885.88
Unquoted
Investments in
Fixed Deposits 142,98
Other Current Assets
Interest Accrued on Investments 58,10
201.08
Total 22,086.96
Aggrepate Market Value of Quoted Investments 20,168.63
Aggrepate Book Value of Quoted Investments 21,885.88
Agpregate Book Value of Unguoted Investments 201.08
NOTE: 11B
ASSET HELD TO COVER LINKED LIABILITIES OF LIFE INSURAMCE BUSINESS : CURRENT
Quoted
Investments in
Equity Instruments
Government or Trust Securities 614.20
Debentures or Bonds 337.94
Mutual Funds 863.21
1,815.35
Unguoted
Investments in
Others
Fixed Deposits BG6.02
Collateralised Borrowing and Lending Obligation 153.320
Certificate of Deposits 138.22
Commercial Papers 135.50
Other Current Assets
Bank Balances 049
Interest Accrued on Investments 387.25
Dividend Receivables 1.79
Outstanding Contracts 82.84
985.41
Total 2,800.76
Apgregate Market Value of Quoted Investments 1,542
Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 1,815
—=pgeregate Book Value of Unguoted Investments 513



Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE: 12
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred Tax Liabilities at the year end comprise timing differences on account of,
Depreciation

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred Tax Assets at the year end comprise timing differences on account of;
Depreciation
Expenditure/Provisions Allowable on Payment Basis
Provision for Doubtful Debt and Advances
Contingent provision against standard assets
Others

Met Deferred Tax Liabilities /{Assets)

Deferred Tax presented in Balance Sheet
Deferred Tax Assets [Net]
Met Deferred Tax Liabilities / {Assets)

As at
31st March, 2017

Tin crore

As at
31st March, 2016

0.60 =
0.60 -
5.80 5.49
. 16.78
2022 76.68
40,58 :
40.80 0.33
107.40 59.28
{106.80} {99.28)
106.80 99,28
{106.80) {99.28)

Deferred Tax Assets in certain subsidiaries are recognised on losses and unabsorbed depreciation only to the extent of Deferred Tax

Liabilities in those subsidiaries.




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE: 13A
LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Capital Advance
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
Less: Pravision for Doubtful
Other Loans and Advances
Loans and Advances of Financing Activities
Secured, Considered Good
Secured, Considered Doubtiul
Unsecured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
Loans against Insurance Policy (Secured, Considered Good)
Loans & Advances to Related Parties|Unsecured)
WAT, Other Taxes Recoverable, Statutory Deposits and Dues from Government
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advance Tax [Net of Provision)
MAT Credit Entitlerment
Prepaid Expenses
Advance for Expenses, Materials, Employees and Others

NOTE: 138
SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
Less: Provision for Doubtful
Other Loans and Advances
Loans and Advances of Financing Activities
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Inter-Corporate Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good
Related Party, Unsecured, Considered Good
Loans against Insurance Policy (Secured, Considered Good)
VAT, Othar Taxes Recoverable, Statutory Deposits and Dues from Government
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advance Tax {Met of Provision)
Prepaid Expenses
Advance for expenses to related party
Agents balance
Advance for Expenses, Material, Employees and Others*
Unsecured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
Less: Pravision for Doubtful

* Refer note no 34-(11

As at
315t March, 2017

in crore
As at
31st March, 2016

8.40 1.58
87.11 18.51
0.19 0.09
(0.19) {0.09)
4,09 =
24,519.08 16,961.63
13.94 -
3.751.34 1,358.78
157.18 160,47
52.26 =
- 0.88
17.34 22.81
32.83 14.80
0.72 0.36
63.12 58.51
28.38 4,31
28,735.79 18,602.64
As at As at

31st March, 2017

31st March, 2016

13.54 2.28
.09 0.05
{0.09) (0.08)
3.36 .
5,567.45 5,702.90
2,381.28 2,727.43
30.00 39.00
1.00 z
1.46 .
25.13 5.02
13.36 39.82
56.19 53 70
8.05
6.77 =
290.17 25,55
7.61 6.69
(7.61) 16.69)
5,437.76 8,641.70




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE: 14A
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other Bank Balances®

Bank Deposits with more than twelve months maturity
Interest Accrued on Loans and Advances and Investments
Others

*Lien Marked in favour of IRDA

MNOTE: 148
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unbilled Revenue

Interest Accrued on Loans and Advances, Investments and Fixed Deposits
Receivable from related parties

Others

Tin crore

31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

1.08 1.08

34.61 0.02
6.56 -

42.25 1.10

1.08 1.08

< 0.82

£83.93 348.47
10.85 =

11.79 36.91

706.57 386.20




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Tin crore
As at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

MNOTE: 15

STOCK OF SECURITIES OF NBFC BUSINESS

Details of opening Stock, Purchases, Sales and Closing Stock in respect of Trading in securities of NBFC business are as follows:
Units of Mutual Funds [Nos. )

Purchase 11,64,52,707.94 24,94,97,071.77
Sales 11,64,52,707.94 24,94,97,071.77
Closing = 2

Stock of Securities (T crore)

Opening 330.20 46757
Purchase 11,199.46 6,912.33
Sales 10,946.88 7.059.27

Clasing 582.78 330.20




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
(Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE: 16

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Due for period exceeding six months from the due date of payment
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Consideread Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful

Dthers
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful

As at
31st March, 2017

Tin crore
As at
31st March, 2016

3.84 827
0.38 1.30
7.94 6.66
(7.94) {6.66)
143.44 123.57
221.70 45.42
1.21 1.78
{1.21) (1.78)
369.36 178.56

-1\




Aditya Birla Capital Limited
{Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE: 17
CASH AND BANK BALAMNCES
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks
Current Accounts
Deposit Accounts {with original maturity period of three maonths or less)
Cash on Hand
Chegues/Drafts on Hand

(A
Other Bank Balances
Deposit Accounts (with original maturity period of more than three manths)H
(B)
{A) + (B)

Less: Bank Deposits with more than twelve months maturity (transferred to Other
Mon-Current Assets)

# Includes deposits placed under lien towards bank guarantees for margins with
exchange/banks.

Tin crore
As at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
449,05 53.44
177.78 1.84
102.54 0.02

3.53 -
732.90 55.30
71.88 59,45
71.88 59.45
B04.78 114.75
1.08 1.08
B03.70 113.67
70.65 58.37

. MUMBA| :, r 1l
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

{Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
CIM: 67120612007 PLCOSERY0

Wates forming part of Consalidated Financial Statements

MOTE: 18

REVEMUE FROM OPERATIONS

A, SALE OF SERVICES
Interest incame
hanagement and Advisary Fees
Life Insurance Pramium
Health Insurance Premium
Qther Flnanclal Senices

A
B, OTHER OPERATING INCOME
inwestment Income an Life Insurance Pelicyhoidess’ Fund
Commission Incame
Miscellanepus Orher Dparating Incama
(8}
i)+ (8]

NOTE: 19

COTHER INCOME

Interest Incame an |maestments
Current
Long-term

Interest Income - Others

Dwidends Income on Investmants
Current
Long-term

Net Gain on Sale of lnvestmeants
MNet Gain on Sate of Current Investments
Long-term

Other Mon-Operating Income
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
General Contingency Provision written back
Qrhers

Year Ended
315t March, 2017

2incrare
Year Ended
315t March, 2016

3,183.8% 2,380.28
GER.ER 16625
TB3.45 -

50.E9 :
621.00 A51 43
5608.07 3,597.95
23.23
142,26
3213
197.62 =
580569 3,597,495
3,34 10.75
- o.09
1237 10.55
1.36 156
- 0.0%
L6852 1291
. ooz
(.0g 0.0
a 19.81
569 4,30
BO.1B TL1E
’ : A -"'I.-_.:
s -
ol 4 -.:‘.,
T |
MUMSBAI | i]
{ == |
) -.__.'::J'II
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited

(Farmerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
CIN: UB7120GJ2007PLCDS8B90

Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE: 20

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries and Wages

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Walfare Expenses

NOTE: 214

FINANCE COST RELATING TO LENDING ACTIVITY OF SUBSIDIARIES
Interest Expenses

Other Borrowing Costs

NOTE: 218

OTHER FINANCE COST
Irterest Eapenses
Cther Borrowing Costs

MOTE: 22

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Cepreciation of Tangible Assets

Amartisation of Intangible Assets

NOTE: 234

CHANGE IN VALUATION OF LIABILITY IN RESPECT OF INSURANCE POLICIES IN FORCE
Change in Valuation of Liability In respect of Insurance Policles

Release from funds from future appropriations

Change in Premium Discontinuance Fund

|restment [Incoma) fLoss aninsurance pelicogholdars’ fund related to Linked business

NOTE: 238
OTHER EXPENSES
Aeny
Aepairs and Maintenance of:
Bulldings
Plant and Machinary
Others
Insurance
Rates and Taxes
Cammunication Expanses
Advertisernent and Sales Promation Expenses
Legal and Profession Expenses
Bad Dabts and Provision for Bad and Dowbtful Cebts and Advances Including Contingency
Provisian for Standard Assets of NBFC
Printing and Stationerny
Travelling and Conveyance
Aeserve for unexgired risk
Bank Charges
Elpctricity Charges
Forelgn Exchange Loss (Net)
Information Technalogy Expensas
Miscellaneous Expenses

Year Ended
31st March, 2017

Tincrore
Year Ended
315t March, 2016

£50.08 458,48
32,69 23.39
15.43 10.37

717.21 501.24

7.278.81 1,507.57
9,46 232
7,288.27 1,590.80
10.82 8.7
0.0 0.03
10,83 8.81
26.42 16.63
16,75 16.22
43147 32,85

£48.76 .
{136 )
{04 48]

1272.16]

176,86
55.91 46.51

054 0.62
0.16 0oi
30,95 2287
832 75
19,90 17.58
20.07 16.30

17891 108,35
63.70 45.75

117.54 03.02

7.00 5,65
3504 26,31
17,74 -

132 2.94

9,49 7.24

0.3z EF]
3014 1561
497,01 39,40
723.06 267.34




Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited
CIN: U7120GJ2007PLCO588590

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
{Amount in T)

¥ear Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
Mote: 24
Earnings Per Share [EPS)
The Following Reflects the Profit and Share Data Used in the Basic and Diluted EPS Computation
Basic
Earnings Per Share [EPS) is Calculated as Under:
Met Profit / (Loss) as per the Staterment of Profit and Loss 530.00 38053
Less: Preference Dividend and Tax Therean 0.97 0.ay
Met Profit for EPS 529.03 379.56
Welghted Average Mumber of Equity Shares for Calculation of Basic EPS B3,29,81,799 75,81,82,603
Basic EPS (%) 6.35 5.01
Waighted average number of Equity Shares Qutstanding 83,29,81,799 75,8182 603
Add: Dilutive impact of Preference shares . 11,68,34,572
Waeighted average number of Equity Shares for calculation of Diluted EPS £3,29,81,799 87,50,17,575

(Face Value of ¥ 10/- each)
Diluted EPS () 6.35 4.34




Aditya Birla Capital Limited {Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MNOTE: 25
COMTIMNGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR

a} Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

B . - . " As at As at
Mature of Statute |Brief description of contingent liabil
i . 44 31st March 2017|315t March 2016
Sales Tax Demands raised by the WAT/Sales Tax autharities of few states. 0.11 0.11
_g_- ice T Fi i
SOEE T e Show Cause cum Demand Motice from Service Tax Authorities issued 38
Act, 1994
45.41 115.54
Various cases pertaining to disallowance of cenvat credit of Service Tax
on commission paid to overseas agent, in GTA services, service for
cutward transportation and other services alleging not be classified as
input services for availment of cenvat credit, et
Income Tax Act, [Appeal filled by DOIT with ITAT. 0.03 0.05
1961 15.30 14.50
Various cases pertaining to demand in tax assessment for various years
Others Statute’s | |pyestor claims pending in Consumer Redressal Forums, in other courts/ 0.54 6.30
authorities and other legal matters.
Claims against the Company nat acknowledged as debts 34.54 8.54
Letter of comfort given by the Caompany an behalf of clients 133.11 244,72
3281 5.88
Corporate guarantees given by the Company on behalf of the clients
Warlous cases pertaining to claims made by clients on sale of securities & 25.14 231
other Civil cases.
Grand Total 286.97 401.09
& . :.:‘- : "’_»‘




Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

As at As
31st March, 2017 31st March, 201

MNOTE: 26
CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

a) Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and 21.79 117
not provided for (Met of Advances)

b} Equity Participation / investment in ARC business 2.00

c) Aditya Birla Customer Services Ltd, (ABCSL), a subsidiary of the Company, has issued 0.001% Compulsorily Convertibl
Preference Shares (CCPS) aggregating to ¥ 60.00 Crores to International Finance Corporation (IFC) vide Shareholdes
Agreement dated 19 December, 2014 and Subscription Agreement dated 19 December, 2014 (SHA). Under the said SHA, th
Company, has granted to |FC an option to sell the shares to the company at fair valuation from the period beginning on th
expiry of 60 manths of the subscription by IFC upto a maximum of 120 months from the date of subscription by IFC, in th
event ABCEL or the Company fails to provide an opportunity to IFC to exit from ABCSL within 60 months from the date ¢
subscription by IFC in the form of Listing, Secondary Sale or Acquisition etc. In the event the Company fails to fulfil it
obligation, Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited, the holding Company will be obligated to fulfil this obligation.

d} Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement entered into with Sun Life of Canada by the Aditya Birla Financial Services Limite
= the Holding Company, in respect of Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited, the Company agreed to infuse its share ¢
capital from time to time to meet the solvency requirement prescribed by the regulatory authority.

Transfer of investments in Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Ltd. and Aditya Birla Health Insurance Company Limited, i
restricted by the terms contained in Shareholder Arreements entered into by the Companv.




Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
MNotes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE: 27
Disclosure pursuant to Accounting Standard-19 - Leases is as under:

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

A, Assets taken on Lease:

il Operating Lease Payment recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Minimiem Lease Rent 63.21 39.13

63.21 39,13

ii] The Group has taken certain Office Premises, Leasehald Improvements, Furniture and Fixtures, Infarmatian Technology and Office Equipment, on
nencancellaklef/cancellable operating lease.

iy The future minimum rental payable in respect of non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

As at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016
Net later than one year 49.68 al.20
Later than ane year and not later than five years 61.68 43,84
Later than five years " 38.20 8.43
149.56 83.47
] The details ol finance lease payments payable and their Present Value of the Group as at the Balance Sheet Date
Particulars R Eksite
i Charges Payable Present Value Interest
al Mot later thamn ang year 2,58 201 0.54
o {3.60) {2.85) (0.75)
k) Later than one year and not later than five years 341 3.07 0.34
[5.18) (4.8} [0.70)
Total 5.96 5.08 0,88
{8.78) {7.33} {1.45)
Figures in brackets represent corresponding amoeunt of Previous Year,
I L
[{ . 1M 1
\\. ¢ - -'H.l
\, % ‘_.A’




Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Motes forming part of Conselidated Financial Statements

NOTE: 28
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Dischosure in respect of Employee Benefits pursuant to Accounting Standard-15 [Revised)

al

The detalts of the Group's Defined Benefit Plans in respect of Gratuity [Tunded by the Groupl;

General Description of the Plan

The Group operates gratuity plan through a trust wherein every employae (s entitled 1o the benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each
completed year of service. The same s payable on termination of service or retirement, whichaver is aarlier, The benefit vests after five years of
continuous sendca. In case of some employees, the Group's scheme is more favourable as compared to the obligation under Fayment of Gratuity Act,

1972, & small part of the gratuity plan, which 5 not material, is unfunded and managed within the Groug,

As at
315t March, 2017

As at
315t March, 2016

Amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of Gratuity

Present Value of the funded Defined Benefit Cbligations at the end of the year T4.25 31.87
Fair Value of Plan Assets b, 38 23.90
Met Liability/[Asset) 7.87 7.97
Amounts recognised in Employee Benefits Expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of
Current Service Cost 5,50 5.32
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligations 4.52 2.0
Expecrad Return on Plan Assets {3,70) 11,701
Met Actuarkal (Gain)/Loss recognised during the year B15 3.37
Fast Service Cost {000 .
Met Gratuity Cost 18,48 402
Actual Beturn an Plan Assets:
Expected Return on Plan Assets 429 1.0
Actuarial Gaing{Loss) on Plan Assets 2.38 (0,31
Actual Return an Plan Assets B.67 1.39
Reconciliation of Present Value of the Obligations and the Fair Value of the Plan Assets:
Change in Present Value of the Obligations:
Qpening Defined Benefit Obligations 31.66 2178
Curpant Service Cost 9.5% 5.32
Interest Cost 4.52 204
Actuarial {Gainl/Loss g.42 305
Liakrility on Stake Change/Divestment/Amalgamation of Subsidiaries/loint Ventures 27,42 0.4n
Liatulities Assumed in respect of employees transferred from Group Companies 135 -
Past Service Costs [0L0E) -
Benetits Paid [3.83) 10.73}
Closing Defined Benefit Dbligstions 74,25 3187
Change in Fair Value of the Plan Assets:
Dgening Falr Walue of the Plan Assets 13.50 19.0E
Expacted Return on the Plan Assets 4.29 17
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) 234 10.31}
Asset on Stake Changs/Divestrment/Amalgamation of Subsidiares/loint Yentures 2742 -
Contribations by the Employer 19.66 LR
Asset acquired an acguisition / {distributed on divestiture) [E.a4d) -
denefits Faid [5.83) 10.73}
Closing Fair Value of the Plan Assets BE.38 23.90
Investment Details of the Plan Assets
Gowernment of india Securities A6, 0015 B34
Corporata Bonds 0,00% 0.18%
Special Depasit Schemi 1.00% 0.94%,
Insurer banaged Fund®* A6, 0% ThO
Cthars 7.00% 10.50%
Total 100.00% 1040 (s
There are no amount included in the Fair Yalue of the Plan Assets for Propeny occupled by or other assets used by the Group.
Experience Adjustment 31st March, 2017 315t March, 2016 31st March,
1015
Crefined Benefit Obligations F4.25 31.86 21.79




Plar Assets 66,38 23.80 19.08

Surplus/{Deficit} {7.87] (7.96] 12.71}
Experience Adjustment an Mlan Liabilities G140 L0 0.61
Enperience Adjustment an Plan Assets 1EG (.21} 0.E8

Expected rate of return on assets is based on the average long-term rate of return expected on isvestments of the fund during the estimated term of the
abligations.

Tin Crores
Ag at As at
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Principal Actuarial Assurnptions at the Balance Sheet Date
Discount Rate 6,50 -7.95% 7 35%% - B.10%
Estimated Rate of Return on the Plan Assets 6,50 -7.095% T.60% - 0.00%
The Estirmates of future salary incoease, congidered in actuaral valuation, take scoount of inflation, senladty, promotion and other relevant factors such as
supply and deamand in the employment market,

bl The details of the Growp's Defined Benefit Plans in respect of Gratuity (unfunded by the Groupl:

As at As at

315t March, 2017 31st March, 2016
Amounts recognised in the Batance Sheet in respect of Gratuity

Present Value of the unfunded Defined Benefin Chligation at the end of the year 417 2.0

Amounts recognised in Employes Benefits Expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of

Currant Service Cost 089 051
Interest on Definad Benefit Obligations 018 Q.07
Net Actuarial (Galn)fLoss recognised during the year 055 0,09
Past sarvices cost 0.06 -

Nat Gratuity Cost 1.68 067

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Obligation;

Cpening Defined Benefit Obligation 2.40 0.59
Past Service Cost .06

Current Service Cost 0.85 051
Interest Cost 018 0.
Nctuarial [Galn/Loss 0.55 0.0a
Liahitity in respect of Employees transferred from funded plan - (0.34)
Benefits Paid 009 1.08
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 4.17 140
Experience Adjustment 31st March, 2007 31st March, 2016 31st March, 2015
Defined Benefit Obligation 417 .40 0.9%
Experience adjustment on Plan Liakilities - 0.1%

Principal Actusrial Assumptions at the balance sheet date
Disenunt rate 6.70 = 7.70% 7608 - B.10%

¢ The details of the Growp's Defined Benefit Plans in respect of Group owned Provident Fund Trust

Year Ended Year Ended
3 rch, 2017 31st March, 2016

Cortribution 1o the Group-Cwnad Employees’ Provident Fund Trust 2,78 1.41
The Guldance Mote on implementing A5-15 — 'Employee Benefits (Revised 2005), issued by the ICAL states that the Provident Funds set-up by em ployars,

which require interest shortfall to be met by the employer, needs to be treated as Defined Benefit Plan, The Group set-up Provident Fund does not have
existing deficit of interest shortfall,

Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2007 31st March, 2016

¢]  Defined Contribution Plans -
Amount recognised as an expense and included in the Note : 17 as *Contribution to Provident and Other 15.74 1352




Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MNOTE : 29
Disclosure under Employee Stock Options Scheme of Subsidiary Company

(A} Aditya Birla Money Limited
Stock options granted under ABML — Employee Stock Option Scheme — 2014

The objective of the Employee Stock Option Scheme is to attract and retain talent and align the interest of
ermployees with the Company as well as to motivate them to contribute to its growth and profitability,

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, as amended by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as 'SEBI ESOP Regulations’) and the Guidance
Mote on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured
using the intrinsic value method. The cumulative expense to he recognized for equity-settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date will reflect the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the company’s best estimate of the number of equity Instruments that will ultimately vest, The expense or
credit to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period to represent the movement in
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is to be recognized in employee
benefits expense, However, there is no expense that is incurred during the year by the Company for this
purpose since the exercise price at which the options have been granted by the Company to eligible
employees are at the market price of the shares under ESOP being less than the exercise price of the option,
As per the ABML ESOP 2014, 25% of the stock option granted got vested at the end of twelve month from the
date of grand of option but none of the employees exercised the vested option till 317 March, 2017,

Stock options granted under ABML — Employee Stock Option Scheme — 2014

The Company had formulated the ABML Employee Stock Option Scheme — 2014 (ABML ESOP Scheme — 2014)
with the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting dated September 09, 2014. The Scheme
provides that the total number of options granted there under will be 27,70,000 and to follow the Market
Value Method (Intrinsic Value) for valuation of the Options, Each option, on exercise, is convertible into one
equity share of the Company having face value of As. 1 each. Subsequently, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board of Directors on December 2, 2014 has granted 25,09,341 stock options to its eligible
employees under the ABML ESOF Scheme = 2014 at an exercise price of Rs, 34.25/-, The Exercise Price was
based on the latest available closing price, prior to the December 2, 2014 {the date of grant by the Nomination
& Remuneration Committee) on the recognized stock exchanges on which the shares of the Company are
listed with the highest trading volume.

Summary of Stock Options granted under ABML ESOP Scheme — 2014 is as under

| Dptions granted on December 02, 2014 Rs. 25,089,341
Options outstanding as on April 01, 2016 ) Rs. 19,79,120

Nao, ufuptinns_ granted during the year il

Method of Accounting Intrinsic Value S
Vesting Plan 25% every year




Exercise period Within 5 years from the date of vesting of
respective oplions

Grant/Exercise price (Rs. per share) Rs. 34.25/-
Market price as on the date of the grant Rs. 34.25/- [previous day closing price on the
recognized stock exchange)
Dptions forfeited/lapsed during the year Rs. 4,50,859 {due to resignation of
B employees)
Dptions exercised during the year Mil
Options outstanding as on March 31, 2017 Rs. 14,45,845

The vesting period in respect of the options granted under ABML ESOP Scheme — 2014 is as follows:

sr.No | Vesting Dates % of options that shall vest
1 12 months from the date of grant 25% nf‘the grant
2 | 24 months from the date of grant 25% of the grant
3 36 months from the date of grant 25% of the grant |
4 48 menths from the date of grant 25% of the grant

Mone of the employees have exercised the vested options.

The Company has granted options to the eligible employees at an exercise price of Rs. 34.25 per share being
the latest market price as per SEBI ESOP Regulations. In view of this, there being no intrinsic value {being the
oxcess of the market price of share under ESOP over the exercise price of the option), on the date of grant, the
Company is not required 1o account the accounting value of option as per SEBI ESOP Regulations.

Fair Valuation:

The fair value of the options on the date of grant has been done by an independent valuer using Black-5choles

Formula,
_'I'_h_rl_!__l_\_c_eiassumptiuﬂs are as under: .
| Risk-free interest rate {%5) 8.13%
| Expected life (No, of years) = 5.00
Expected volatility (%) 54.26%
Dividend yield (%) B 0.00
The price of the underlying share in market at the time of option grant | Rs. 34.25/-

(B} Aditya Birla Customer Services Limited

The Company has formulated Employee Stock Option Scheme — 2015 (ABCSL ESOP Scheme = 2015) with the
appraval of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting dated July 07, 2015, The objective of the Employes
Stock Option Scheme is to attract and retain talent and align the interest of employees with the Company as well
as to motivate them to contribute to its growth and profitability. In accordance with the Guidance Note on
Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments, the cost of equity-settled transactions is measured using the
Intrinsic Value method, The cumulative expense to be recognized for equity-settled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date will reflect the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit to
be recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period to represent the movement in cumulative expense
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recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is to be recognized in employee benefits expense,
However, there is no expense that is incurred during the year by the Company for this purpose since the exercise
price at which the options have been granted by the Campany to eligible employees are at the Fair Value of the
Company and further, the vesting of options is due only in the upcoming years,

The ABCSL ESOP Scheme — 2015 provides that the total number of options granted there under will be 1,134,853
equity shares and to follow the Fair Value method for valuation of the Options. Each option, on exercise, is
convertible into one equity share of the Company having face wvalue of Rs. 10 each. Subsequently, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors on September 4, 2015 has granted 900,618
stock options to its eligible employees under the ABCSL ESOP Scheme — 2015 at an exercise price of Rs. 89/, The
Exercise Price was based on the Fair value method arrived at as per valuation report issued by Independent
valuer,

Summary of Options granted under ABCSL ESOP Scheme 2015 is as under

Options outstanding as on 01.04.2016 7,508,884
Mumber of options granted during the year 0
Method of accounting Fair value

Bullet vesting on
Vesting Plan 31.03.2018

Within 2 years from
the date of vesting of

Exercise period respective options
Grant date . et 04.09.2015
| Grant / Exercise price (Rs / share] Rs. 89/ =
Market price as on the date of the grant A
Dptions forfeited [/ lapsed / not opted for during the
year 2,66,597
Options exercised during theyear Nil
Options outstanding as on 31.3.17 332,387

The vesting period in respect of the options granted under ABCSL ESOP Scheme — 2015 is as follows:

Vesting Dates % of options that shall vest

Options shall vest at one go-bullet vesting at the end of | 100% of the grant more specifically specified in the
March, 2018 or such time period as may be determined | ES0OP Scheme
| by the Compensation committee.

The fair value of the options on the date of grant has been done by an independent valuer using Black-Scholes
Farmula,

The key assumptions are as under:

__'E"fl_riahh!s Grant date 04.09.2015 vest 03.09.2020

Fair market value Rs. 89

Volatility - 0%

Risk free rate T.R3%

Exerciseprice Rs. 89

Expected Life 6 years

Dividend yield 0%
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Option fair value Rs. 20.74

Vesting schedule 100%

Weighted average fair value | Rs. 20.74

Had the company used the fair value model to determine compensation, its profit / (Loss) after tax and earnings

per share are reported would have changed to the amount indicated below

Particular 2016-17 2015-16
Net Profit (as reported) 530.01 380.53
Less: Dividend on Preference Shares 0,97 0.97
Net Profit for equity shareholders 529.04 379.56
Less: Compensation cost as per Fair Value 0.95 2.04
Adjusted Net Income 528.08 378.49
Weighted average number of Basic Equity Shares Outstanding (In 83,29,81,799 |  75,81,82,603
Mos.
Wei;hted average number of Diluted Equity Shares Qutstanding {In §3,29,81,799 §7,50,17,575
Mos, ) — - —
Face value of the Equity Share {In ¥)
10 10
Reported Earning Per Share [EPS)
- Basic EPS (%) 6.35 5,01
- Diluted EPS (T) 6.35 4,34
Proforma Earning Per Share (EPS)
- Basic EPS (T) 6,34 4499
6.34 433 |

- Diluted EPS (T
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Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)

Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE: 30

DISCLOSURE IN RESPECT OF RELATED PARTIES PURSUANT TO ACCOUNTING STANDARD-18

1 List of Redated Parties

Helding Company
Adityz Birla Nuva Limited (ABNL}

Fellow Subsidiary

Birla Suniife Insurance Compary Limited (BSL1 (Gl 23rd March, 2017}

ABNL Investment Limited (AlL)

Aditya Blrla Idea Payment Bank Limded (ABIPBL})

Key Management Parsonnel
M Agay Srinvasan

2 Dwring the year, following transactions wera carried oul wilh 1he related parties:

Tin Crores
. Key
Transaction / Nature of Relationship Halding F?“Fw Management Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries
Personnel
Revenue From Operation
B5LI - 293 o -
- 13.53) - (3.53)
TOTAL - 2.93 - -
- (3.53) - (3.53)
Interest Paid
ABML 0.80 - 0.80
{2.44) - - (2.44)
TOTAL 0.80 : . 0.80
{2.44) 3 {2.44)
Payment For Reimbursement of Revenue / Capital expenditure
ABML 0,05 - - 0.05
113 . - (0.13}
asiy . 3.80 .
e {3.08) s [3.08)
ABIPBL - 1.24 - 1.24
TOTAL 0.05 5.04 . 1.29
{113/ {2.08) . {3.21}
Receipts against Reimbursement of Expenses
ABML - -
{0.01) . - (0,01}
B5LI - 45,46 - 45.46
. {39.14) {39.14]
TOTAL - 45.46 - 45,46
f0.01) {39.14) = {35.15}
Purchase of Fixed Assets
B5LI - 0,10 - -
[0.10) - {0.10)
TOTAL - 0.10 - H
5 {o.10) : {0.10)
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Tin Crores

s Key
| I
-\ Transaction / Nature of Relationship Holding Fellen Management Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries
Personnel
Interest Expenses on NCD
B5LI = 11.04 - -
. (3.15) . {3.15)
TOTAL - 11.04 . -
- {3.15) - {3.15)
Interest Expenses on ICD
ABMNL 4,22 ¥ = 4,22
TOTAL 4,22 - = 4.22
Insurance premium
ABNL 3.97 . - 3.97
TOTAL 3.97 - - 3.97
Loans / Deposits taken [including Inter-Corporate Deposits )
ABNL 63,76 - - 63.76
[53.67) - ] {53.67)
TOTAL 63.76 + = 63.76
{53.67) = - {53.67)
Advance Taken for Expense
BSLI : 9.73 5 *
= {10.06) {10.06
TOTAL - 9.73 & :
. {10.06) - (10.08}
Managerial Remuneration Paid*
M. Al3v Selnbre - - 24.35 24.35
Fo Ay Tinvasan 2 s :12.?951 {121?9
TOTAL - - 24.35 24.35
) : (12.79) {12.79)
Loans taken Repaid (including Inter-Carporate Deposits)
ABMNL 63.27 . = 63.27
(102700 (102.70)
TOTAL 63.27 - - 63.27
{102.70) - - {102.70)
Deposits taken during the year
ARNL - ¥ = *
{0.04) £ - {0.04),
TOTAL . 3 " g
{04} - - {0.04)
Deposits taken - Repaid during the year
ABNL : = 2 -
(0.04) - = (0.0a)
TOTAL = * = -
{0.04) - 2 fo.o4)




T in Croras

; Key
Transaction f Mature of Relationship Hokting F?“?“_ Management Grand Total
Company Subsidiaries
Personnel
Issue of Equity Shares
ABNL 1.877.98 - - 2,877.98
[247.00) = = (247.00)
AlL - 0.08 - 0.08
: {3.00) {3.00)
TOTAL 2,877.98 0.08 . 2,878.06
{247.00) {3.00) = (250,00
Conversion of Preference Shares to Equity Shares
ABML 336.50 £ 336.50
{140.00) (146.00)
TOTAL 336.50 - 336.50
i {140.00/ - {140.00)
Issue of Preference Shares
ABNL F0.00 = 70.00
[#20.00) - (720,00}
TOTAL Fo.00 - F0.00
{720.00) - - {720.00)
Redemption of Preference Shares
ABNL 1,471.11 - 1,471.11
TOTAL 1,471.11 - - 1,471.11
Outstanding Balances as on 31st March, 2017
Loan Taken outstanding balance 16.74) ] (6.74)
Interest accured on Loans taken (0.16) i (0.16)
- 0.21 0.21
Amount Recelvable (0.04) {1.69) - (1.73)
3.97 - - 3.97
Amounts Payable , i3.29} (3.29)
. - - 3.24
ICD Balance " 2‘? | i
52.03 - - 52.03
NCD Balance Eﬁﬂ.gg:l & - {50.99)
: 1,232.24 - - 1,232.24
Equity Shares Held by (1,504.01) (3.00) N (1,507.01)
Preference Shares Held by 11,737.61) (1,737.61)
Interest Payble on NCD {1.94) {1.94)

- Flgures in brackets represent corresponding amount of Previous Year.
- Mo amount, in respect of the related parties have been written off/back, is provided for during the year.
- Related parties relationships have been identified by the management and relied upon by the auditors,

* . Expenses towards gratuity and leave encashment provisions are determined actuarially on an overall company
basis at the end of each year and accordingly have not been considered in the above information,




Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)

Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE: 31
SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting {A5-17), taking into account the
organisational structure as well as differential risk and returns of these segments,

The Groug has considered businass segment as the primary segment for disclosure, The products and services included in each of the

reported business segments are as follows:

SEGMENT

ACTIVITIES

MBFC Mon-Bank Financial Services, Housing Finance

Asset Manangement

Asset Managament

Insurance Broking

Insurance Broking

Life Insurance

Life Insurance Services

Money Broking

Equity and Commaodity Broking,

Health Insurance

Health Insurance

*Gther Financial 5ervices

Private Equity, Wealth Management

[he Group considers secondary segment based on Services provided to customers India as "within India" and services provided to
customers outside India as "outside India". Assets are segregated based on their geographical location,

Information about Primary Business Segments

Segment Revenue For the year ended 31st March, 2017 For the year ended 31st March, 2016
- Inter-
External iy Total External et Tatal
o s Segment Segment

MNEFC 3,727.18 12.21 3,739.3%9 2,542.69 0.37 2,543.06
Asset Manangement 968.49 : 968.49 765.19 E 765.19
Life Insurance Business 78751 - 787.51
Insurance Broking 119.12 1.97 121.09 96.78 - 96.78
money Broking 123.37 1.21 124 .58 119.65 - 119.65
Health Insurance 53.60 0.33 53.93 - - -
Other Financial Services 26.41 38.55 B4.596 73.64 17.75 91.39
Total Segment 5.805.69 54.25 5,859.94 3,597.95 18.12 3,616.07
Elirninations 54.25 18.12
Total Revenue 5,805.69 3,597.95

Segment Result (PBIT)

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March, 2017 March, 2016
MBFC 816.44 596.14
Asset Manangemeant 292.90 303.22
Insurance Broking 33.13 2819
woney Broking 6.45 3.14
Life Insurance Business 39.54 -
Health Insurance (86.67) .
Other Financial Services [52.59) {71.53)
Total Segment 1,049.20 B58.76
Less; Finance Cost 1083 8.81
Add: Interest Income 12.86 10.68
Less: Inter Company Dividend income 33.48 6.59
Add: Unallocakle Incame [net of unallocable expenses) 47.99 14.61
Profit before Exceptional item and Tax 1,065.74 BE8.65
Exceptional item - .
'Profit before Tax 1,065.74 868.65
Tax Expenses 374.59 34457
Profit before Minority Interest 691.15 524.08
Minority Interest- 161.15 143,55
530.00 380.53

IWMEA _'II

!




Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Information about Primary Business Segments

Other Information

Carrying Amount of Segment
Assets (including Goodwill) as

Carrying Amount of Segment
Liabilities as on

on

31st March,|  31st March,| 31st March, 31st March,

2017 2016 2017 2016

Financial Services
MNBFC 38,556.72 28,135.95 34,245.73 24,293 88
Assel Manangement 272.64 23828 258.24 162.11
Insurance Broking 69,39 27.18 33.77 26.84
Life Insurance Business 35,293.56 - 34,182.15 -
waney Broking 481.75 445.50 211.20 144.17
Health Insurance 328.43 17.59 167.57 7.18
Other Financial 5ervices 322.81 276,27 118.58 55.78
Total Segment 77,325.29 29,140.77 69,217.23 24,693.98
Inter-segment Eliminations (233.28) [5.14) 1233.28) 15.14)
Unallocated Corporate Assets/Liabilities 1,038.74 905,91 5R4.81 127.44
Total _&ESEISJ’ Liabilities - 78,130.75 30,041.53 69,568.76 24,.816.27

Other Information

| Cost incurred to Acquire
Segment Fixed Assets

{including CWIP and Capital

Advancefor the Year Ended

Depreciation / Amortisation
for the Year Ended

31st March,|  31st March,| 31st March, 31st March,
2017 2016 2017 2016

Financial Services
MEFLC 60.97 18.68 12.68 B.83
Asset Manangement 12.18 6,18 9.78 8.92
Life Insurance Business - - 1.03 .
Insurance Broking 832 3.47 297 191
Health Insurance 1216 31.98
Money Broking 367 2.95 1.16 396
Other Financial services 7.58 18.45 9.58 9.22
Total Segment 124.87 49.74 43.17 32.85
Unallocated - - . -
Total 124.87 49.74 43.17 32.85

Information about Secondary Business Segments

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2017 31st March, 2016

Revenue by Geographical Market

in India 5,773.81 3,570.47

Qutside india 31.88 27 48

Total 5,805.69 3,597.95
Carrying Amount of Segment Assets

In India 748,097.78 0,018.12

Cutside India 32.97 23.41

Total 78,130.75 30,041.53
Cost incurred to acguire Segment Fixed Assets

In India 124,77 49.36

Quiside India 0.10 (.38
| Total 124.87 49.74




Aditya Birla Capital Limived
[Formerly known as Aditya Birka Financial Services Limited)

Nates forming part of Consolidated Financial 5tatements

NOTE: 32

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PERSUANT TO SCHEDULE 11 OF COMPANIES ALCT, 2013 FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 315T MARCH 2017

Met Assets® Met Assets as on 315t | Share in Profit or Loss | Share in Profit or Loss for
as on 315t March, 2017 March, 2016% for the year ended 315t | the year ended 315t
March, 2017 March, 2016
Mame of the Entity
% of % of % of % af
Consalidated | Amount | Consolidated | Amount | Consolidated | Amount | Consolifated | Amount
Net Assets MNet Assets Profit and Loss Profit and Loss
HOLDING COMPANY =
Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited 69.51%|  4.610.90 70.25% 3,139.71 0.80% 4.24 0.13% 10.48)
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Aditya Birla Capital Advisors Private Limited 0.52% 313.98 DB 3056 675 3.02 1.19% a.52
Adiya Birla Customer Services Limited -0.E9% {5H.68) -0.02% (0,97 10E9% | (57.71) -18.39%|  (F0.00)
Aditya Birla Financial Shared Services Limived 0.01% 0.39 0.00% 0.13 0.05% .26 A% 10071
Aditya Berla Trustee Company Private Limited 0.00% 029 0.01% 0.26 ] i D01% Q.03
Mk‘r'& Barla Money Limited Conso 0.64% 4220 0.91% 40,42 1.17% .28 DB 3.33
Aditya Birla Monay Rart Limited -0.06% (3.82) 0A1% 118.27| DA% 1072 LTS (6 #1)
Ackitys Birla Money insurance Advisory Services Limited
1100% Subsiciary of Aditys Birla Money Mart Limited) 006% {4.18) -0.059%, 1397} 0048 {0,200 -0.60% (2.28]
Arditya Birly Insurance Brokers Limited [ 90% 59.18 1.77% 34.40 467R] 17 5.60% 21.30
Additya Birls Finance Limited p 75.68%) 459131 B2a5%) 369580 110.42%) 585.25 107.38%| 408,60
Aditya Birla Housing Finance Limited 5575, 6748 4.60% 10476 -293%]  |15.50) 7945 130,22}
Birla Sun Life Asset Management Company Limibed 13.90% 916.83 18645 B30.16 40.99%] 117.25 55.05%]) 20948
Birta Sun Life Trustee Company Private Limited 0.01% .55 001% 051 Gi1% 0.04 0.01% 0.05
Aditya Birla Health Insurance Co. Limited 111% 145,66 D06 280 -16.35%)  [B6 67} 0.00% -
ARCAP Trustes Company Private Limited 0.0 19,00 0.00% . 0.00% 101} (L00% b
Aditya Birla Weliness Private Limited [w e f. june 33, 2016) 0.04% 2148 0.00% - 045% 12 41} 0u00%
Hirla Sun Life insurance Company Limited (w.e.f. March 23, 2017} 26.95%) 1,777466 0.00% - A2% 39.33 0.00%
Birla Sun Life Pension Management Limited w.ef. March 23, 2017 0.41% 7107 0.00% = D.04a% 21 0.00%
FOREIGN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
'i!-iLIE }Enhfg AMIC (Mauritivs) Lid 0.0%% B2 0.12% 537 D.52% 4.87 1.37% 5.42
[ Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Lid,, Oy bal 0,075 452 0.12% 516 0.09%|  (0.48) 0.25% 1001
Adityi Birla Sun il AMC Pie L:d.,&ngapﬂre 1.21% 13451 0,11% 4.62 0.30% 1.57 -1.75% [6.E7]
Minarity Interest (1,951,600 (755.76) 1161.15] [143.55]
Preference Share ssued by Subsidiary and Joint Venture
Companies [14.70
|Censolidation Eliminations and Adjustments 14,372.07) |2,751.41) 133.26] |10.93}
TOTAL ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWMNERS 6,595.48 4,454 80 530.01 380,53
Maobes;

® Net Asiers = Tolel Assets - Tobtao! fobilities

1 India Advantage Fund Limited (IAFL), whally cwned Subsidiary of Birla Sun Life Asset Management Company Limited, is o collective investment scheme set up as a fund in
Pdauritius wah the status of a limited company under the Mauritius Companies Act. In terms of constitution and private placement memorandum, IAFL has classes of
redesmable participating shares, Each class of participating shares has its own Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, The Profit/Loss of each such class belangs 1o the
participating shareholders of that class. Birla Sun Life Asset Managemert Comgany Limited (BSAMC] owns 100% of the management share and managemant shareholder ks not
antitled to ary beneficial interest in the profit/loss of various classes nor is required to make gonod any shortfall, In substance, there are no direct or indirect economic benefits
spreived by the management sharehalders. The substance over form must prevail. Accordingly, the Growp has not coansplidated LAFL In the Consolidated Financial Statements

7, Aditya Birla Sun Life AMC Pte Limited, Singapore has made [nvastment in International Cppartinities Fund. International Oppartunities Fund SPCIOF) is segregated portlolic
company setup as 3 fund in Cayman istands under the Cayman Istands Monetary Act In terms of constitution and private placerment memarandum, I0F has various segregated
portialio which issue redeamale participating shares. Each Segregated Partolic of participatng shares has its own Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account. The PrafitfLoss
ol #ach such Partfolia belongs 1o the participating shareholders of that segregated portfolla. Aditya Birla Sun Life Asset Management Pte. Limited (ABSLAMC] owns 100% of the
management share and management shareholder is not entitted to any beneficial interest in the profit/loss of various segregated portfolios nor is required te make good any
chartall, In substance there are no direct or indirect economic benefits received by the management shareholdirs. The substance over form must prevail, Accerdingly, the
Group has net consalidated 10F in the Consolidated Financial Statamant.




Aditya Birla Capital Limited (Formerly known as Aditya Birla Financial Services Limited)
Motes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MNOTE: 33
Cash transaction in specified bank notes (SBNs)

Details of specified bank notes (SBNs) and transactions therein during the period from Bth Movermnber, 2016 to 30th December, 2016 are as
given below as required by the notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number
5.0, 3407{E), dated #th Movember, 2016.

Particulars SBNs T AR N Total
MNotes

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 42,500 10,908 53,408

{+} Permitted receipts 8,556,500 108,298 9,664,798

[} Permitted payments {1,500) 196,523) (98,023}
|-} Amount deposited in Banks 15,597,500} : 19,597,500)
Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 - 22,683 22,683
Mote!

Aditya Birla Finance Limited [ABFL), Subsidiary company of the group

During the natitied period the customers of ABFL have directly deposited cash amounting to T 69,40 Lakhs in the bank account of ABFL held with scheduled
banks. ABFL has not transacted in the SBN's and accordingly ABFL did not have any cash balance as on 08.11.2016 and 30.12.2016

Aditya Birla Housing Finance Limited (AEHFL) Subsidiary company of the group

The 5BN's are directly deposited by customers inta ABHFL's central bank account towards the part payment o closure of their outstanding loan amount,
ABHFL has obtained the relevant details of deposits from bank and fram deposits skips provided by customers and accordingly provided the details in abave
table.
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34,  OTHER SIGNIFICANT NOTES

The Group's pending litigations comprise of claims by or against the Group primarily by the employees /
customers [ suppliers, etc. and proceedings pending with tax and other government authorities. The Group has
reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where Provisions are required
and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements, The Group does not expect
the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on s financial results. In respect of
litigations, where the management assessment of a financial outflow is probable, the Group has made adequate
provisions in the financial staterments and appropriate disclosure for contingent liabilities is given in note no 26,

The Group has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts are assessed for material foreseeable
losses. At the year end, the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses need to be provided as required under any law / accounting
standards.

Pursuant to a Share Purchase agreement [SPA’) between Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited [‘ABNL' or ‘the Purchaser’)
and Mr.Prataph C Reddy and others | "Erstwhile Promoters”) dated August 28, 2008, ABNL had agreed to acquire
31 million equity shares in Aditya Birla Money Limited {“ABNML"). The transaction was completed on March 6,
2009,

As per the SPA, the Erstwhile Promoters had agreed to indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser to the extent
of any Losses, resulting from or consequent upon or relating to such breach of representations or warranties,
covenants or agreement including but not limited to the recoveries of receivables and other assets in the books
of ABML, contingencies on tax and related matters etc,

Subsequent 1o the completion of the above transaction, the Purchaser noted several breaches of representations
and warranties including but not limited to non-recovery of debtors, irrecoverable advances, missing fixed assets
etc. Accordingly, ABNL based on its internal assessment of the recoverability of receivables, fixed assets, other
assets and matters relating to tax and other contingencies arrived at an amount of RS 16.66 Crore as Losses
incurred on account of breach of representation  warranties in the 5PA. Further, ABMNL vide its letter dated
March 5, 2011 made a separate claim of Rs 0.52 Crore for amounts becoming due and payable on accounts of
various cases initiated by the customers of ABML ABNL invoked the arbitration mechanism and filed their
Statement of Claim on February 26, 2011 with the Arbitration Tribunal,

Pending the final outcome of the arbitration proceedings, ABML has identified all such receivables, assets efc
which are have not been recovered and other items which are the subject matter of the claim to the extent they
are in the books of accounts of ABML as at March 31, 2017 aggregating Rs. 18.73 Crore (previous year: Rs.
18.66 Crore) and disclosed the same in Short Term Loans & Advances in Note No 138 of the Balance Sheet, as
these amounts would be paid directly to ABML by the Erstwhile Promaoters at the direction of ABNL as and when
the settlernent happens.

Both report submitted by Professional Accounting firm and had also directed the Respondent to file their list of
witnesses (if any) by the end of April 2013, The Respondents filed their objections to the audit report and ABMNL
had also filed its reply to the said objections.

Arguments in rebuttal by the Claimant was completed on 25 October 2013 and written submissions were filed by
29 October 2013. The tribunal has reserved the award, =
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V.

During the FY 2014-15, Arbitral Tribunal has passed an award, allowing claim of Rs.10.24 Crore, which excluded
premature claims pertaining to income tax, service tax, etc. Further, such award directed the Erstwhile
Pramaters to pay a sum of Rs. 5.73 Crore, alongwith interest @ 14% from the date of award. This award was
received by ABML on 27th May 2014,

Subsequently, during the year both parties have filed petitions under Sec.34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation
Act, 1996 seeking to set aside the award and the same are admitted and pending on the file of the High Court
of Madras.

In respect of such receivables, which exclude premature claims pertaining to income tax, service tax, etc,, ABML
has created adequate provision, which also includes claims not awarded by the Arbitral Tribunal to the extent of
44%. In respect of tax claims, ABML has abtained favourable order for certain assessment years & is confident of
recovering such amount in due course. Such amounts are fully recoverable from the income tax department.

Further in the month of October 2015, Supreme Court dismissed the appeal filed by ABML against SAT order
directing ABML to pay a sum of Rs. 1.66 Crore together with interest thereon. Consequently SEBI served a notice
of demand on ABML seeking payment of a sum of Rs. 1.66 Crore towards turnover fee and a sum of Rs. 3.76
Crore and in the month of October 2016, Rs.0.11 Crore towards interest thereon from the respective due dates
of payment of the said Turnover Fee,

As the erstwhile promoters have agreed to indemnify ABNL to the extent of any losses resulting from or
consequent upon the civil appeal pending before Supreme Court vide Civil Appeal No. 3441/2007 in the SPA, the
demand was communicated to the erstwhile promoters and the erstwhile promoters have paid the total
turnover fee of Rs, 1.66 Crore 1o ABML against the payment made by ABML to SEBI

The request of ABML to SEBI seeking walver of the interest was not considered favourably and the review
petition filed by ABML in Supreme Court was also dismissed. In the meanwhile SEBI issued a Recovery Certificate
dated 12.01.2016 seeking to recover the interest amount and ABML remitted the above mentioned interest
amount with SEBI under intimation to erstwhile promoters.

Based on legal opinion received by ABML in the previous year and internal assessment, the uftimate company is
confident of recovering the allowed claim through the legal process. Further, we conform that ABML has
committed to transfer any funds received on settlement of arbitration order to ABML. Accordingly in our opinion
there is no uncertainty in recovery of such amounts and no additional provision is necessary

On 23rd March, 2017 the Company has acquired 51% equity shares of Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited
("BSLIC") from Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited. Consequently, BSLIC has become subsidiary of the Company with effect
from 23rd March, 2017, Revenue and profit and loss account of BSLIC for the peried from 23rd March, 2017 to
31st March, 2017 has been prepared and certified by the management of BSLIC based
on estimates and extracted from audited financial statements of BSUIC for the year ended March 31, 2017,
Accordingly, total revenue of Rs, 791 Crore, profit before tax of T 40 Crore, and profit after tax of ¥ 40 Crore for
the period from 23rd March 2017 to 31st March, 2017 have been consolidated.”

Scheme of Arrangement between Subsidiary Companies:

s  During the year, the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat, Ahmedabad approved the 5cheme of Arrangement vide
order O/COMP/445/2016 dated 24”"° November, 2016, and the certified true copies of the scheme and order
were received on December 21, 2016, whereby the Wealth Management Undertaking of Aditya Birla
Money Mart Limited [ABMM), a subsidiary of the Company was  demerged and transferred to Aditya Birla



b}

Finance Limited (ABFL), also a subsidiary of the Company, with the Appointed Date of a g April, 2016, The
Scheme of Arrangement was made effective on 31" December, 2016,

In consideration of the demerger, the Company has received 10,277,778 equity shares of T 10 each of ABFL
as per the share entitlement ratio determined based on an independent valuation report at 3 equity shares
of T 10 each in ABFL for every B equity shares of T 10 each held in ABMM and 1 equity share of T 10 each in
ABFL for every 36 0.01%-Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares of * 10 each held in ABMM,

As per the Scheme of Arrangement, the general purpose borrowings in ABMNM have been transferred to the
Compary in proportion to the value of assets transferred to ABFL. Accordingly, ABFL has issued Compulsory
Convertible Debentures (CCD) of value of ¥ 23.99 crore to the Company in lieu of such amount of CCD of
ABMM which were transferred to ABFL. Hence the current holding pattern of CCDYs by the Company is as
under:

ABFL-¥ 23.99 crore
AMML-T 26.01 crore

The carrying value of the investments in ABMM (net of impairment) is considered to be at fair value of asset
given up for equity shares received from ABFL,

V1. Conversion of Preference Shares:

s During the year 5,65,00,000 0.01%-Non Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of € 10
each are due for conversion on the existing terms and condition, accordingly the Company has converted
preference shares into 56,50,000 fully paid Equity Shares of T 10 each at premium of ¥ 90 each,

s During the year the Company has made early conversion of its 28,00,00,000 0.01%-Non Cumulative
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each into 2,80,00,000 fully paid Equity Shares of T 10
each at premium of T 90 each.

® During the year the Company has reclassified its Authorised Share Capital. The revised structure comprise
of 2,20,00,00,000 Equity shares of T 10 each and 1,80,00,00,000 Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each.

VIl. During the year the Company made early redemption of its 1,47,11,10,000 6%-Non-Convertible Non-
Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of T 10 each held by Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited, The same is
approved by Board of Directors and accounted accordingly. The redemption is made as per existing terms and
conditions.

Vill.  During the year, the Board of Directors of the Company at its Board Meeting held on p 3 bl August, 2016, had
approved a Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Aditya Birla Nuvo Limited (ABNL), Grasim Industries
Limited (GIL) and the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme’). The Scheme
provides for the amalgamation of ABNL with GIL on a going cancern basis, demerger of the financial services
business from amalgamated GIL into the Company post the amalgamation and consequent listing of the equity
shares of the Company. The approval for the Scheme had been received from the Competition Commission of

Ind
me

ia. The Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal, Bench at Ahmedabad (MCLT) had directed holding of the
eting of the Shareholders of the Company on 10" April, 2017 and the Shareholders of the Company have

unanimously approved the Scheme. NCLT has approved the Scheme on June 1, 2017, The Boards of ABNL and

GiL

have decided July 1, 2017 to be the effective date for amalgamation of ABNL into Grasim and fized the

record date at July 6, 2017 for the same. The Board of GIL has decided July 4, 2017 to be the Effectwe date for

demerger of the financial services business,
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IX. Figures of ¥ 50,000 or less have denoted by ‘B

K. Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged o confirm to the current year's presentation,
wherever necessary.

As per our attached report of even date
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